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Directors’ Report

To the Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Twenty 
Eighth Directors Report of your Company along with the 
Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2023.

Change of Name of the company

In order to improve its corporate branding and visibility in 
the market as a StockHolding group your company changed 
its name from SHCIL Services Limited to Stockholding 
Services Limited. The name change was carried out 
subsequent to the approval of shareholders, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA), Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI), National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE), BSE Limited (BSE), Multi Commodity Exchange of 
India Limited (MCX), Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (MSEI), National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL).

Financial Performance

During the year ended March 31, 2023, your company 
earned gross total income of ` 9532.36 lakhs which was 
down by 20% as compared to previous year. The Profit after 
tax was ` 1388.97 lakhs which declined by 35% compared 
to previous year. The majority of your company’s client 
operate in cash/equity segment and there was reduction 
of 22% in average daily turnover on NSE from ` 68,000 
crores in FY 2021-22 to ` 53,000 crores in FY 2022-23. 
Reflecting the market trend your company’s top line also 
dropped by 20%. The last year was also tough due to 
several regulatory changes, a strict margining system and 
plethora of operational changes in trading activities which 
impacted overall transaction and quantum of business. 
The financial results are summarized below:

(` In lacs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Total Income 9532.36 11879.14

Total Expenditure 7589.23 9018.91

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 1943.13 2860.23

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 1388.97 2135.48

Total Comprehensive 
Income

1391.46 2134.74

Net Worth 9508.32 9173.33

Book Value per Equity 
Share (`)

156.14 150.64

Earnings per share (`) 22.81 35.07

Dividend

The Board of Directors considering the performance had 
approved and paid 1st interim dividend of ` 6.50/- per 
equity share (65%) on face value of ` 10/- each to its 
shareholders. The Board is pleased to recommend subject 
to approval of shareholders a final dividend of `1.50/- per 
equity share (15%) making the total dividend of ` 8/- per 
equity share (80%) on the face value of ` 10/- each for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Transfer to reserves

Your Company does not proposes to transfer any amount 
to the general reserve. An amount of ` 1391.46 lakhs are 
retained in the Profit & Loss Account.

Economic and Capital Market developments

There has been a sharper-than-expected slowdown in the 
Global economic activity, with inflation at its all-time high, 
a level rarely seen over past decades. The cost-of-living 
crisis, tightening financial conditions in most regions, 
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, all weighed heavily on the 
economic growth.

India’s annual growth rate was 7.2 percent for the fiscal 
year 2022-23. The Indian economy rebounded since the 
COVID-19 pandemic, with an exponential growth. The 
continued momentum indicates India’s resilience and 
ability to recover from the hindrances caused by the global 
health crisis.

India is likely to witness GDP growth of 6.5% to 7% in 
2023-24, depending on the trajectory of economic and 
political developments globally, credit growth to the micro, 
small, and medium enterprises (MSME) sector. 

The average daily turnover in the cash market in FY 23 was 
down by almost by 22%. However over the same period, 
the average daily derivatives turnover had gone-up.

A SEBI rule which mandated clients trading in the cash 
market to compulsorily put up a 20% upfront margin, 
which was earlier funded by brokers has impacted the 
turnover. This SEBI move aimed to reduce systemic risk 
by protecting the market against stock broker’s default in 
case clients failed to pay up when their trades go wrong.

The Indian Economic Survey points out that factors 
like monetary tightening by the RBI, the widening of 
the Current Account Deficit (CAD), and the plateauing 
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growth of exports have essentially been the outcome of 
geopolitical strife in Europe. As these developments posed 
downside risks to the growth, many agencies worldwide 
have been revising their growth forecast.

Despite tighter domestic monetary policy, India is still 
expected to grow between 6.5 and 7.0 per cent, and that 
too without the advantage of a base effect, is a reflection 
of India’s underlying economic resilience; of its ability to 
recoup, renew and re-energise the growth drivers of the 
economy. India’s economic resilience can be seen in the 
domestic stimulus to growth, seamlessly replacing the 
external stimuli.

Operations review

Your Company is in the business of Stock Broking and is 
a member of BSE Limited (BSE) Cash, Equity Derivatives, 
National Stock Exchange of india Limited (NSE), Cash, 
Equity Derivatives, Currency Derivatives and Multi 
Commodity Exchange of India Limited (MCX) commodities 
segment. Your company provides demat services as a 
Depository Participant (DP) of Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL) and National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL). Your company is also registered as 
Portfolio Management Services (PMS) with Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and will be starting the PMS 
services shortly. The Stock Broking services are offered to 
both retail investors and institutional clients.

Digital initiatives

Your Company has added further impetus to its digital 
strategy and is leveraging its digital platform to provide 
seamless service to its clients. Customers are on-boarded 
through digital platforms and your company is promoting 
and welcoming investors to use the digital platforms. Your 
Company is educating Authorized Person (AP) branches 
and is conducting webinars on the features of the Digital 
Platforms to encourage the clients to shift to the digital 
platforms. The training is also being imparted to the 
StockHolding and other APs/ Branches to provide hands 
on for the new integrated software.

SSL is taking steps to increase the transaction through 
digital mode. During the year approximately 48% of all 
transactions were conducted through digital platforms, 
compared to 43 % of last year. Your company has made a 
strategic partnership with Alphaniti, a reputed third-party 
firm, to offer digital advisory.

Discount Broking

SSL is focusing on its discount broking product “SHAREPA” 
and is moving ahead with strategy of fortifying its 
infrastructure for forthcoming B2B collaborations/strategic 
alliances with various institutions. SSL’s client on- boarding 
software is a testament to this commitment which enables 

swift client on-boarding. In line with our dedication and 
meticulous brand management and a unified digital 
footprint, we are continuing in-house marketing and 
promotion activities to maintain precise control over our 
content and the brand development.

Subsidiaries

Your Company does not have any subsidiary.

Details to be reported u/s 134 (3) (ca) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

No frauds have been noticed/reported by Auditors during 
the year.

Directors Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge, ability and belief and 
according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, your Directors make the following statements in 
terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
confirm that:

(a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed and there 
are no material departures;

(b)  the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
your Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit 
of the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c)  proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d)  the annual accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis;

(e)  proper internal financial controls were in place and 
such financial controls are adequate and operating 
effectively.

(f)  systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws were in place and were adequate 
and operating effectively.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by the company. The internal audit in addition 
to ensuring compliance to policies, regulations, processes 
etc., also test and report adequacy of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial reporting/statements. 



Financial Highlights Board & Management Financial Statements

StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly SHCIL Services Limited) 05

The Board relied on the framework of internal financial 
controls and systems established and maintained by the 
Company, the work performed by the internal auditors, 
statutory auditors and secretarial auditors including 
internal financial controls and reviews performed by the 
management and relevant Board Committee’s. The Board 
is of the opinion that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Based on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee the Board appointed Shri 
Chirag Sapra, Deputy General Manager, IFCI as the 
Additional Director w.e.f. October 20, 2022. Shri D.C. Jain, 
Independent Director was re-appointed for a second term 
of five years by the shareholders at Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting (EGM) held on March 10, 2022. Shri Amit Dassi, 
Director will retire at the ensuing AGM and being eligible 
offer himself for reappointment. 

Subsequent to completion of his term/assignment as MD 
& CEO of StockHolding, Shri Ramesh N.G.S demitted the 
office as the Non-Executive Chairman of your Company 
from the close of business w.e.f. April 13, 2023. The 
Board appreciates the valuable contribution made by Shri 
Ramesh N.G.S. during his association with the Company.

Your Company has six Directors which includes one 
Woman Director and two Independent Directors. The 
Independent Directors Shri G. Anantharaman and Shri D. 
C. Jain have given declaration that they meet the criteria 
of Independence as laid down under Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Sanjay Pote, MD & CEO, Shri Rajneesh Singh, Company 
Secretary and Shri Hemang Ladani, Chief Financial Officer 
are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Number of Meetings of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board and its Committees are 
held to discuss and decide on various business policies, 
strategies, etc. During the year, five Board Meetings were 
convened and held. The intervening gaps between the 
meetings were within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. The details of meetings of the 
Board and various Committees of the Board are given in 
the Corporate Governance Report.

Annual Evaluation of Performance of the Board

The Board of Directors is the cornerstone of the corporate 
governance framework of the Company. An effective 
Board ensures that the long-term strategic objectives of 
the Organization are being achieved and are in line with 
the interests of multiple stake holders.

In line with the above philosophy and pursuant to Section 
149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company has put in place a mechanism to facilitate 
evaluation of performance of Board as a whole, which 
includes evaluation of the performance of each of the 
Directors, including Independent Directors, Chairperson, 
and Board as a whole.

The responses were sought from Directors through 
questionnaires on various aspects of the Board’s 
functioning in close alignment with the stated objectives of 
the Company. On the basis the response received from the 
Directors, the Board carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, Directors individually 
as well as the evaluation of the working of the regular 
Committees of Board. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee undertook an evaluation of each Director’s 
performance.

The Independent Directors met separately without the 
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members 
of management, where they discussed and reviewed the 
performance of Non-Independent Directors, Chairman 
and Board as a whole. The Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee undertook an evaluation of each Director’s 
performance.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

In terms of the requirements under the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Company has put in place a Policy on 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees.

The said Policy is guided by the set of principles and 
objectives as particularly envisaged under Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy outlines attributes 
and criteria to be taken into account while appointing 
a Director, which includes academic and professional 
qualifications, experience, skill sets, etc. Appointment 
of Directors are considered and recommended by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee in the first 
instance, and thereafter approved by the Board and 
Shareholders.

The Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors comprises 
sitting fees for attending the meetings of Board/ 
Committees of the Board. None of the Directors were 
entitled to Stock Options.

The MD & CEO is entitled to fixed pay as well as variable 
pay linked to performance. The payment of remuneration 
to the MD &CEO is subject to approval by Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, Board and Shareholders.

The NRC Policy of the Company is placed on the website 
of your Company at www.stockholdingservices.com, The 
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details of composition and meetings of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee are included in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The details of the Composition and meetings of Audit 
Committee are included in the Corporate Governance 
report which forms part of this report.

Auditors

Being subsidiary of Government Company, your Company 
is also a Government Company. The Office of Comptroller 
and Auditor General of India (CAG) vide its letter dated 
September 02, 2022 had appointed M/s. Laxmi Tripti & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of 
your Company under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013 for the financial year 2022-23.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications, 
observations or adverse remarks.

Your Company has an elaborate internal audit system. 
Internal Audit of the functions and activities of the 
Company is carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered 
Accountants.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) 
Audit

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG), 
vide letter dated July 26, 2023, informed that C&AG 
have decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of 
financial statements of your Company for the year ended 
March 31, 2023 under section 143(6)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Copy of the same is placed next to the Statutory 
Auditors’ Report forming part of the financial statements.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantee and Investments

Your Company has not given any loans, guarantees and 
investments within the purview of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Related Party Transactions

All the Related Party Transactions (RPTs) that were entered 
into during the financial year were on arms’ length 
basis and were in the ordinary course of business and 
were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as well as the Policy on Related 
Party Transaction adopted by the Company. As prescribed 
under section 177(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, RPTs 
are placed before the Audit Committee. None of the 
transactions with related parties falls under the scope of 
section 188(1) of the Act.

All the RPTs have been approved by the Audit Committee of 
the Board on the strength of Management representation 
that they are in the ordinary course of business at arm’s 
length price.

The Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
Act, (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure A to 
this Report.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunal:

There were no material orders passed by the regulators or 
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and 
the company’s operations in future.

No application was made or any proceedings are pending 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Risk Management

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part 
of business and is committed to managing the risk in a 
proactive and efficient manner. The Company periodically 
assesses risk in the internal and external environment. The 
Risk Management Committee inter-alia reviews various 
risks your Company is exposed to and considers the 
mitigants suggested by the business heads/ departmental 
heads. The details of Risk Management Committee are 
included in Corporate Governance Report which forms 
part of this report. The Company is committed to managing 
the risk by continuously upgrading its Software features, 
automation and elimination of manual intervention.

Committee on Prevention of Sexual Harassment

Your Company has constituted an Anti-Sexual Harassment 
Committee as required under “The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.” The Committee includes an 
external Independent Member. The disclosures required 
to be made under The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. are given below:

Number of complaints of sexual harassment 
received in the financial year 2022-2023

NIL

Number of complaints disposed-off during 
the financial year 2022-2023

N.A.

Number of cases pending for more than 
ninety days

NIL

Number of workshops or awareness programs 
against sexual harassment carried out

1

Nature of action taken by the employer NA

Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report 
trading

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition 
of Insider Trading Regulations, 2015] (Regulations) inter 
alia provides that market intermediary registered with SEBI 
is mandatorily required to formulate a code of conduct 
to regulate, monitor and report trading by its employees. 
Your Company being a SEBI registered intermediary has 
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formulated a code of conduct to regulate monitor and 
report trading by its employees / Directors.

Extract of Annual Return

As per Section 92 (3) & 134 (3)(a) of the Act, Annual 
Return for FY 2022-23 is uploaded on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed at the link https://www.
stockholdingservices.com /Annual Report/MGT-9

Corporate Governance

Your Company is not a listed entity. Nevertheless, it 
endeavors to comply with Corporate Governance norms. 
A report thereof is annexed at Annexure B.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Stockholding Services Limited (SSL) believes that business 
and corporate Social responsibility (CSR) go hand in 
hand. The CSR activities of SSL are carried out in line 
with the CSR policy of your company.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) policy of our Company and the initiatives undertaken 
on CSR during the year are set out in the Annexure C of 
this report in the format prescribed in the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The 
CSR policy is also available on the website of the Company 
at www.stockholdingservices.com

The details of composition & meetings of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee are included in the 
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this 
report.

Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of your Company were in receipt 
of remuneration in excess of the limits as laid down under 
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Human wealth Development and Training

Your company is committed to creating a healthy, secure 
and employee friendly organizational culture which 
encourages its employees to develop their skills, push their 
limits for learning new things. SSL nurtures the talent and 
potential of its employees by nominating them to various 
training and development programs to hone their talent 
and skill sets. In order to foster community spirit and 
inclusivity. Programs, competitions and celebration are 
organized.

The employees are encouraged to acquire the necessary 
regulatory and compliance certifications conducted 
by NISM and program conducted by SEBI, NSE, BSE, 
MCX, etc. which are relevant to the SSL’s business. SSL 

recognizes training and development as a crucial part of 
the talent development and various programmes were 
conducted during the year, both through physical and 
virtual platforms.

SSL participated to various Government of India initiatives 
by observing Vigilance Awareness Week with the theme 
‘Corruption-free India for a Developed Nation’, employees 
were encouraged to participate in the “Har Ghar Tiranga 
campaign” as a part of Azadi Ka Amrit Mahotsav 
commemorating 75 years of India’s Independence. SSL 
participated in an initiative to make India a clean India, 
which was conducted by the Government of India, i.e. 
“Swachhata Pakhwada”, inviting contributions for essays, 
slogans and innovative ideas from employees and their 
families in English as well as in Hindi.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from 
the public during the financial year 2022-23. Hence, no 
information is required to be appended to this report.

Dematerialization/Issue of equity shares

The equity shares of the Company are admitted with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) is 
“INE04R301012”. As on date more than 94.58% of the 
Company’s equity shares are in dematerialized form.

Your company has not issued any equity shares with 
differential right as to dividend, voting or otherwise and 
neither issued shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of the company under any scheme.

Secretarial Auditors & Standards

Your company does not fall under the criteria as per 
the Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and hence the 
Secretarial Audit is not mandatory to company. However, 
to follow best Corporate Governance practice, SSL has 
appointed M/s D A Kamath & Co, Company Secretaries 
LLP to carry out audit of its Secretarial activities. There are 
no qualification, observations or adverse remarks in the 
said report. The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
has currently mandated compliance with the Secretarial 
Standards on Board Meetings and General Meetings. 
During the year under review, the Company has complied 
with the applicable Secretarial Standards.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of energy & technology absorption

Your Company does not carry any manufacturing activities. 
However, it has taken steps towards conservation of energy 
and continues to use latest technologies for improving the 
productivity and quality of its services. The company uses 

https://www.stockholdingservices.com
https://www.stockholdingservices.com
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energy efficient LED lights equipped with latest technology 
having features of lower power usage and improved 
performance. The Company is using energy efficient VRF/
VRV system of air conditioning.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year 
under review:

Foreign Exchange earnings - Nil

Foreign Exchange outgo – Nil
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Annexure A

FORM AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act,  
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under 
third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: None

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any Not Applicable

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Not Applicable

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board Not Applicable

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed Not Applicable

(i) Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable

(j) Date on which special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 
proviso to Section 188 of the Companies Act,2013

Not Applicable

2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: None

(a) Names(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements of transactions including the value, if any Not Applicable

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any Not Applicable

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the
 Board of Directors

Sanjay Pote                  Amit Dassi
MD & CEO                       Director

DIN:08085505            DIN:08499086

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 18, 2023
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The Company ‘s philosophy on code of Governance 

The Company is not a listed entity. Nevertheless, it endeavors to comply with Corporate Governance norms as specified 
under SEBI Listing and Disclosure Regulation 2015. The Company‘s philosophy on corporate governance recognizes the 
accountability of the Board & Officers and the importance of decisions to all constituents, including customers, employees, 
investors, business associates, regulatory authorities and the Community at large. The Company believes that all its 
operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing shareholder value over a period of time.  

Board of Directors

The Board consists of 6 members, of which 2 are independent directors. The day-to-day management of the company 
vests in the hands of the MD & CEO.

Shri Chirag Sapra, was appointed as the Additional Director w.e.f. October 20, 2022. Shri D.C. Jain, Independent Director 
was re-appointed for a second term of five years by the shareholders at Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 
March 10, 2022. Shri Amit Dassi, Director will retire at the ensuing AGM and being eligible offer himself for reappointment.

Subsequent to completion of his term/assignment as MD & CEO of StockHolding, Shri Ramesh N.G.S demitted the office 
as the Non-Executive Chairman of your Company from the close of business w.e.f. April 13, 2023.

The details of Directorships held by the Directors as on July 20, 2023 in other companies are as follows:

Shri G Anantharaman

Sr. No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 CDSL Insurance Repository Limited Independent Director

2 Invesco Trustee Private Limited Director

Shri D. C. Jain

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 Wonder Home Finance Limited Director

2 Famy Finvest Private Limited Additional Director

3 IRM Private Limited Director

4 Brick Eagle Affordable Housing Finance Limited Director

5 Famy Finance Private Limited Director

Shri Sanjay Pote

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 IFCI Financial Services Limited Additional Director

2 IFCI Commodities Limited Additional Director

Shri Amit Dassi

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

- - -

Smt. Sarala Menon

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

- - -

Annexure B

Report on Corporate Governance
(Forming part of Directors’ Report for financial year ended March 31, 2023)
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Shri Chirag Sapra

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 IFIN Credit Limited Additional Director

Details of the Board Meeting and Attendance

The Board of Directors meet at least once in every three months.  Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23. 
Details of Board Meetings held are as follows:

S. 
No.

Date of the Board Meeting
Total number of Directors 

on the date of the meeting
No. of Directors 

attended
% of Attendance

1 April 26, 2022 6 6 100

2 July 22, 2022 6 6 100

3 October 20, 2022 7 7 100

4 January 25, 2023 7 6 85

5 March 14,  2023 7 6 85

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting during the financial year 2022-23:

S. 
No.

Name of the Director April 26, 
2022

July 22, 
2022

October 
20, 2022

January 
25, 2023

March 
14, 2023

Attendance at the AGM 
held on September 16, 

2022 

1 Shri Ramesh N.G.S 
(Resigned on April 13, 
2023)

√ √ √ √ √ √

2 Shri Sanjay Pote √ √ √ √ √ √

3 Smt Sarala Menon √ √ √ √ LOA √

4 Shri D. C. Jain √ √ √ √ √ √

5 Shri Amit Dassi √ √ √ LOA √ √

6 Shri G. Anantharaman √ √ √ √ √ √

7 Shri Chirag Sapra 
(appointed w.e.f 
20/10/2022)

- - √ √ √ -

√ = Attended LoA=Leave of Absence 

Details of Audit Committee and Attendance

The accounts of your Company are audited every quarter and the audited quarterly and annual financial statements are 
placed before the Audit Committee for their consideration, review and recommendations before submission to the Board 
for approval.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Board inter alia includes the terms referred to under Section 177 
(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

As on March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee comprised of three members viz., Shri G. Anantharaman (Chairman), Shri 
D. C. Jain, Independent Director and Shri Amit Dassi, Nominee Director. The details of attendance of the Directors at the 
Audit Committee meetings during the FY 2022-23 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category
Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting

Apr 26, 
2022 

Jul 22, 
2022 

Oct 20, 
2022

Jan, 25, 
2023 

1 Shri G Anantharaman Independent Director √ √ √ √

2 Shri D. C. Jain Independent Director √ √ √ √

3 Shri Amit Dassi Director √ √ √ LOA

√ = Attended   LoA=Leave of Absence
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Details of Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee inter-alia review’s various risks your Company is exposed to/ risk associated with any 
new activities and considers the mitigants suggested by the business heads/ departmental heads. As on March 31, 2023, 
the Risk Management Committee comprised of Shri G Anantharaman, Smt Sarala Menon and Shri Amit Dassi. The details 
of attendance of the Directors at the Risk Management Committee meetings during the FY 2022-23 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category

Attendance at the Risk Management  
Committee Meeting

Apr 26, 
2022 

Oct 20, 
2022 

Jan 25, 
2023

Jan 24, 
2022

1 Shri G Anantharaman Independent √ √ √ √

2 Shri Amit Dassi Director √ √ LOA √

3 Smt Sarala Menon Director √ √ √ √

√ =  Attended LoA=Leave of Absence

Details of Nomination Remuneration Committee (NRC) and Attendance

Your Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).  As required under Section 178 
(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the NRC has inter alia formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of Directors, recommend the appointment of persons who may be appointed as Directors, 
Key Managerial and Senior Management position (one level below the MD & CEO / WTD) in accordance with the criteria 
laid down in this policy, recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to KMP, Senior Management Personnel and 
other employees and recommend to the Board remuneration, if any, payable to the Directors, etc.

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprised of three directors viz., Shri G. Anantharaman (Chairman), Shri D. C. 
Jain and Smt Sarala Menon as members. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee meetings during the FY 2022-23 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

Category

Attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meeting

Apr 26, 
2022 

Jul 22, 
2022 

Oct 20, 
2022

Jan 25, 
2023

March 14, 
2023

1 Shri G Anantharaman Independent Director √ √ √ √ √

2 Shri D. C. Jain Director √ √ √ √ √
3 Smt Sarala Menon Director √ √ √ √ LOA

√ = Attended LoA=Leave of Absence 

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and Attendance

The CSR policy of your Company has been prepared pursuant to Section 135 of the Act, CSR Rules, any circulars / 
notifications issued by the MCA. The role of CSR Committee includes:

 Formulating and recommending to the Board of Directors the CSR policy and indicating activities to be undertaken.

 Recommending the amount of expenditure for the CSR activities.

 Monitoring CSR activities from time to time.

As on March 31, 2023, the CSR Committee comprised of Shri D.C. Jain (Chairman), Shri Amit Dassi and Smt Sarala 
Menon (Director) as members.

The CSR Committee met once during the year. The detail of attendance of the Directors at the CSR Committee meeting 
is as under:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category
Attendance

October 20, 2022

1 Shri D. C. Jain Chairman √

2 Smt. Sarala Menon Director √

3 Shri Amit Dassi Director √

√ = Attended. 
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General Meetings

Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company were held at Mumbai and the 
details for the past three years are as under:

Meeting Financial Year Date Venue

25th Annual General Meeting    2020-21 September 16, 2020 Stock Holding Corporation of 
India Limited

301, Centre Point,  
Dr. Babasaheb Ambedkar 

Road, Parel,  
Mumbai - 400012

26th Annual General Meeting    2021-22 September 17, 2021

27th Annual General Meeting    2022-23 September 16, 2022

15th Extraordinary General Meeting 2022-23 July 08, 2022

16th Extraordinary General Meeting 2022-23 March 10, 2023

Shareholding Pattern

Your company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited, (Stockholding). As on date 
Stockholding holds 6,089,703 shares of Rs.10 each in your company.

Disclosures

There were no transactions of your Company of material nature with its Directors, KMP or their relatives that may have 
potential conflict with the interest of your Company at large.

Dividend history

Dividend history of last five years

S. No. Financial Year Rate of Dividend
(`)(per equity share)

Date of Declaration (AGM)

1 2017-18 3.95 September 7, 2018

2 2018-19 3.50 September 9, 2019

3 2019-20  4.00 September 16, 2020

4 2020-21 8.00 September 17, 2021

5 2021-22 11.00 September 16, 2022

Shareholder Information

a) Annual General Meeting

  At registered office of the company SHCIL House, Plot No. P-51, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 400710

b) Date of Book closure/record date

 September 15, 2023

c) Dividend payment date

 Dividend after September 15, 2023 but within the statutory time limit.

d) Listing on Stock Exchange

 The Company’s shares are not listed in any stock exchange.

e) Distribution of shareholdings as on March 31, 2023

 The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited (StockHolding). 

f) Address of correspondence
  The Company Secretary
  Stockholding Services Limited
  P-51, T.T.C, Industrial Area
  MIDC, Mahape,
  Navi Mumbai 400 710
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1.  A brief outline of your Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programmes proposed to 
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

 Your Company strongly believes that Business & Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) go hand-in-hand. 

  The Board of your Company after taking into account the recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee of the Board has approved the CSR policy. The CSR policy is also displayed on the website http://
www.stockholdingservices.com/.

 The CSR activities of your Company are towards the under mentioned areas.

  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care, sanitation, etc.;

  Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills, etc.;

   Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance including contribution to the clean Ganga fund set up 
by the Central Govt. for rejuvenation of river Ganga, etc.;

  Any other area under Schedule VII of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  All the CSR activities of your Company are predominantly being undertaken through its Holding Company 
StockHolding and SHCIL Foundation Trust, a public charitable trust registered under Section 12 (A) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. The Trust carries out certain activities directly and also indirectly by way of donations to credible NGOs 
which are eligible to issue certificate under Section 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year

1 Shri D. C Jain Independent Director, Chairman 1 1

2 Shri Amit Dassi Director 1 1

3 Smt. Sarala Menon Director 1 1

3.  Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

  The Board after taking into account the recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of 
the Board has approved the CSR policy. The Composition of the CSR committee, CSR policy and the CSR projects are 
also displayed on the website https://www.stockholdingservices.com/.

4.  Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

 Not applicable since the CSR obligation is less than `10 crore.

5.  Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, 
if any.

Sl. No. Financial year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in `)

Amount required to be 
set- off for the financial 

year, if any (in `)

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Annexure C

Annual Report on CSR activities
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6.  Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR as 
per 135(5)

  Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR as per 135(5) 
is ` 1938.48 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

  Two percent of average net profit of the Corporation as per section 135 (5) is ` 38.76 lacs.

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years.

  Nil

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

  Nil

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b – 7c)

  The total CSR obligation for the financial year is `39 lacs (considering rounding off)

8. Details of CSR spent/unspent for the financial year:

 a. Total amount spent for the financial year

Total amount 
spent for the 
financial year 
(in `)

Amount unspent (in `)

Total amount transferred to 
unspent CSR account as per 

section 135 (6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule vii as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the
Fund

Amount Date of transfer

39,00,000/- Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

 b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

  NIL

 c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
S.
No

Name of 
the Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule VII 
to the Ac

Local 
Area

Location of the 
project

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in `)

Amount 
spent 
on the 

projects 
(In `)

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
for the 

project as 
per Section 

135(6) 
(in `)

Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period
(in `)

Mode of 
Imple-
men-
tation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No).

Mode of implementation

State District Name CSR 
registration 

Number 

1 Gurudev 
Charitable 
Trust, 
Vizianagaram 
district, 
Andhra   
Pradesh

Medical-
Eradicating 
hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition, 
promoting 
preventive 
health 
care and 
sanitation 
and making 
available 
safe drinking 
water.

NO Andhra 
Pradesh

Vizianaga-
ram 

district, 

15,00,000 15,00,000 Nil 15,00,000 No Through 
SHCIL 

Foundation

CSR00004627



28th Annual Report 2022-2316

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
S.
No

Name of 
the Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule VII 
to the Ac

Local 
Area

Location of the 
project

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in `)

Amount 
spent 
on the 

projects 
(In `)

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
for the 

project as 
per Section 

135(6) 
(in `)

Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period
(in `)

Mode of 
Imple-
men-
tation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No).

Mode of implementation

State District Name CSR 
registration 

Number 

2 Hurt 
Foundation 

Promoting 
education, 
including 
special 
education 
and 
employment 
enhancing 
vocational 
skills 
especially 
among 
children, 
women, 
elderly and 
the differently 
able and 
livelihood 
enhancement 
Projects. 

Yes Maha-
rashtra

Mankhurd, 
Mumbai

7,00,000 7,00,000 Nil 7,00,000 NO Through 
SHCIL 

Foundation

CSR00004627

3 Shri Sai Trust Promoting 
education, 
including 
special 
education 
and 
employment 
enhancing 
vocational 
skills 
especially 
among 
children, 
women, 
elderly and 
the differently 
able and 
livelihood 
enhancement 
Projects. 

No Maha-
rashtra

Neral, 
Karjat 
Taluka, 
Raigad 
District.

10,00,000 10,00,000 Nil 10,00,000 NO Through 
SHCIL 

Foundation

CSR00004627

4 Patamda 
College, 

Promoting 
education, 
including 
special 
education

No Jharkhand Jamshed-
pur,

700,000 700,000 Nil 700,000 NO Through 
SHCIL 

Foundation

CSR00004627

 d. Amount spent in Administrative overheads: -

  NIL amount from CSR funds

 e. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

  Not applicable since the CSR obligation is less than `10 crore.

 f. Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

  ` 39,00,000/-
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 g. Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl.
no.

Particulars Amount (in `)

i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5) 38,76,968

ii. Total amount spent for the financial year 39,00,000

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [ii – i] 23,032

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any

Nil

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [iii-iv] Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR Account 

under section 
135 (6)  
(in `)

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in `)

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if 

any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial 

years (in `)

Name of the 
Fund

Amount (in `) Date of 
transfer

1. Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl. 
No.

Project ID Name of 
the Project

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project  
(in `)

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 
Year (in `)

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in `)

Status 
of the 

project - 
Completed 
/Ongoing

1 Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not  
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

10.  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)

 a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

  Nil

 b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital

  Nil

 c)  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc.

  Not applicable.

 d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location 
of the capital asset).

  Not applicable.

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5).

  For the financial year 2022-23, the company has spent two per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years.

Place: Mumbai Sanjay Pote D. C. Jain
Date: August 18, 2023 MD & CEO  Chairman

DIN:08085505 DIN:02425815
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
StockHolding Services Limited
(Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of 
StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly known as SHCIL 
Services Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement 
of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards(“the IND- AS”) of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit/loss, its 
cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.
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•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable.

2  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books

 (c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account

 (d)  Directions under sections 143(5) of Companies 
Act 2013 applicable for the year 2022-23 and 
onwards.

  I.  The Company has system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through IT 
system. All the transactions are processed 
through IT system only.

  II.  The company does not have any loans, so 
question of restructuring/ waiver/ write off 
does not arise.

  III.  The company has not received any amounts 
from specific schemes from Central/ State 
agencies.

 (e)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

 (f)  On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 (g)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.

 (h)  With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements – Refer Note 32 to 
the financial statements;

  ii.  The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

  iii.  There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Laxmi Tripti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.009189C

Prashant Porwal
Partner
Membership No. 409266
UDIN: 23409266BGYTBK1359

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28-04-2023

Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date)

(i) (a) (A)  Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars of Intangible 
Assets.

 (b)  The Company has regular programme of physical 
verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment, 
by which all the Property, Plant and Equipment 
are verified annually. During the current year, 
the company has carried out physical verification 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment and no 
material discrepancies were noticed upon 
such verification, In our opinion, the physical 
verification programme is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and nature of 
its assets.

 (c)  All the assets disclosed in financial statement are 
held in the name of Company.

 (d)  The Company has not revalued any of the assets 
during the financial year.

 (e)  According to the information and explanation 
given to us, no proceedings have been initiated 
or are pending against the company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder during the year.

(ii) (a)  There is no inventory held by the Company and 
hence reporting under this clause (ii) of CARO 
2020 is not applicable.

 (b)  There is no working capital limit or loan taken by 
company on basis of security of current assets.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

(iv)  The Company has not granted any loans, made 
investments or provided guarantees and hence 
reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2020 is not 
applicable.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit 

during the year from public as per the directives 
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records has not been 
specified by the Central Government under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 (a)  The Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Income-
tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Value 
Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. As 
explained to us, the Company did not have any 
dues on account of Employees State Insurance 
and Excise Duty.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, there is no such unrecorded income based on 
the assessment under income tax act.

(ix)  The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings 
from financial institutions, banks and government. 
The Company has not issued any debentures.

(x)  The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under 
clause (x) of the CARO 2020 Order is not applicable. 
Also, during the year the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and 
hence reporting under clause (x) of CARO 2020 is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xi)  To the best of our knowledge and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company and no material fraud on the Company 
by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2020 Order 
is not applicable.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance 
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
where applicable, for all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. 
as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)  The Company has Internal Audit system which is 
appropriate with the size and nature of Company, we 
have duly considered the internal auditor’s report.

(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company or persons connected with them 
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-I of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(xvii)  There is no Cash Losses incurred during the financial 
year and immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)  Statutory auditor of Company has not resigned 
during the financial year.

(xix)  To the best of our knowledge and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material 
uncertainty exists. The Company is capable of meeting 
its liability existing at date of balance sheet date as 
and when they fall due within one year from Balance 
sheet date.

(xx)  With regard to CSR compliances, the Company does 
not have any unspent amount.

(xxi)  This clause is not applicable to the Company.

For Laxmi Tripti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.009189C

Prashant Porwal
Partner
Membership No. 409266
UDIN: 23409266BGYTBK1359

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28-04-2023

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date) 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of StockHolding Services Limited 
(Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited) as of March 
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 

operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Laxmi Tripti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.009189C

Prashant Porwal
Partner
Membership No. 409266
UDIN: 23409266BGYTBK1359

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28-04-2023

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

 
The preparation of financial statements of StockHolding Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance 
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 
section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act 
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. 
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 28 April 2023. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the 
financial statements of StockHolding Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under section 143(6)(a) of the 
Act. 

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Guljari Lal)
Director General of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date 26.07.2023
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As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Laxmi Tripti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 009189C

STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited)

Prashant Porwal Sanjay Pote G. Anantharaman D. C. Jain
Partner Managing Director Director Director
Membership No. 409266 & Chief Executive Officer DIN: 02229822 DIN: 02425815

DIN: 08085505

Sarala Menon Hemang Ladani Rajneesh Singh
Place: Mumbai Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: April 28, 2023 DIN: 08499105

Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2023 (` in lakhs)
Particulars Note  As at 

March 31, 2023
 As at 

March 31, 2022
ASSETS
I. Financial Assets 2  6,632.52  15,638.46 
 (a) Cash and cash equivalents 3  8,392.50  6,551.50 
 (b) Bank balances other than (a) above 4
 (c) Receivables  4,824.31  19,092.66 
  (i) Trade receivables 
  (ii) Other receivables 5   
 (d) Investments 6  177.35  0.01 
 (e) Other financial assets  5,092.00  5,655.16 

 25,118.68  46,937.79
II. Non-financial assets
 (a) Current tax assets (net) 7(a)  76.94  128.94 
 (b) Deferred tax assets (net) 8  40.80  61.85 
 (c) Property, plant and equipment 9  196.15  101.85 
 (d) Intangible assets under development 10  540.90  386.00 
 (e) Other Intangible assets 11  126.81  103.92 
 (f) Other non-financial assets 12  667.68  476.10 

 1,649.28  1,258.66 
Total Assets  26,767.96  48,196.45 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
I. Financial Liabilities
 (a) Payables 13
  (i) Trade payables
   -  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises
 -    -   

   -  total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 15,952.96  36,424.46 

  (ii) Other payables
   -  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises
 -    -   

   -  total outstanding dues of other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 268.67  687.51 

 (b) Other financial liabilities 14  798.59  1,115.71 
 17,020.22  38,227.68 

II. Non-financial Liabilities
 (a) Provisions 15  33.22  29.84 
 (b) Other non-financial liabilities 16  206.20  765.60 

 239.42  795.44 
III. EQUITY
 (a) Equity Share Capital 17  608.97  608.97 
 (b) Other equity 18  8,899.35  8,564.36 

 9,508.32  9,173.33 
Total Liabilities and Equity  26,767.96  48,196.45 
The accompanying notes 1 to 51 are from an integral part of these financial statements.



Financial Highlights Board & Management Financial Statements

27StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly SHCIL Services Limited)

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Laxmi Tripti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 009189C

STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited)

Prashant Porwal Sanjay Pote G. Anantharaman D. C. Jain
Partner Managing Director Director Director
Membership No. 409266 & Chief Executive Officer DIN: 02229822 DIN: 02425815

DIN: 08085505

Sarala Menon Hemang Ladani Rajneesh Singh
Place: Mumbai Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: April 28, 2023 DIN: 08499105

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2023

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

I. Revenue from Operations
 (a) Interest income 19  1,234.79  776.12 
 (b) Dividend income 20  0.33  14.20 
 (c) Fees and commission income 21  8,234.64  10,969.67 
 (d) Other operating income 22  51.53  63.73 
I. Total revenue from operations  9,521.29  11,823.72 
II. Other income 23  11.07  55.42 
III. Total Income (I+II)  9,532.36  11,879.14 
IV. Expenses
 (a) Finance costs 24  23.84  10.77 
 (b) Fees and commission expense 25  5,111.95  6,979.32 
 (c) Net loss on fair value changes 26  91.90  -   
 (d) Impairment on financial instruments 27  -    0.41 
 (e) Employee benefits expenses 28  711.33  739.10 
 (f) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 29  116.48  130.57 
 (g) Other expenses 30  1,533.73  1,158.74 
Total Expenses  7,589.23  9,018.91 
V. Profit before tax (III-IV)  1,943.13  2,860.23 
VI. Tax expense 31
 (a) Current Tax  533.94  727.19 
 (b) Deferred Tax  20.22  (2.44)

 554.16  724.75 
VII. Profit for the year (V-VI)  1,388.97  2,135.48 
VIII. Other comprehensive income/(expenses) 
 (a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
   - Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans  3.32  (0.99)
  (ii)  Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to    

profit or loss
 (0.83)  0.25 

  Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year  2.49  (0.74)
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)  1,391.46  2,134.74 
X. Earnings per equity share: 33
 (a) Basic (`)  22.81  35.07 
 (b) Diluted (`)  22.81  35.07 
The accompanying notes 1 to 51 are from an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2023

(` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

 Profit/(Loss) before tax  1,943.13  2,860.23 

 Adjustments  to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows :

 Depreciation, amortization and impairment  116.48  130.57 

 Interest Income  (626.86)  (588.21)

 Dividend from Mutual Funds  (0.33)  (14.20)

 Interest cost on Lease liability  14.15  10.77 

 Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment  (0.06)  -   

 Reversal of Provisions  (3.33)  (48.83)

 Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  9.23  -   

 Impairments on financial instruments  -    0.41 

 Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability  3.32  (0.99)

 Operating profit before working capital changes  1,455.73  2,349.75 

Working capital adjustments :

 (Increase)/ Decrease in other bank balance  (1,841.00)  (2,873.50)

 (Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables  14,271.67  (6,065.00)

 (Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets  556.26  2,248.87 

 Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-financial assets  (191.58)  9.00 

 Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables  (20,890.34)  8,486.44 

 (Increase)/Decrease in other financial liabilities  (353.28)  (345.22)

 (Increase)/Decrease in provisions  3.38  (8.95)

 Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities  (559.40)  (177.40)

Cash generated from operations  (7,548.56)  3,623.99 

Direct Taxes paid  (481.94)  (796.85)

Net cash generated/(used in) from operating activities (A)  (8,030.50)  2,827.14 

B. Cash flow from investing activities

 Purchase of property plant and equipments  (144.01)  (45.02)

 Sale of property plant and equipments  0.08  -   

 Purchase of Intangible assets including under development  (159.47)  (393.13)

 Sale/(Purchase) of Investments  (177.34)  555.81 

 Dividends from Mutual Funds  0.33  14.20 

 Interest Earned  633.76  585.74 

 Net cash generated/(used in) from investing activities (B)  153.35  717.60 
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

C. Cash flow from financing activities

 Dividend Paid  (1,065.70)  (883.38)

 Repayment of lease liabilities  (63.09)  (80.80)

 Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activities (C)  (1,128.79)  (964.18)

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (9,005.94)  2,580.56 

 Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  15,638.46  13,057.90 

 Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year  6,632.52  15,638.46 

Notes

1.  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS).

2. Component of cash and cash equivalents :  refer note 2.

The accompanying notes 1 to 51 are from an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2023

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Laxmi Tripti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 009189C

STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited)

Prashant Porwal Sanjay Pote G. Anantharaman D. C. Jain
Partner Managing Director Director Director
Membership No. 409266 & Chief Executive Officer DIN: 02229822 DIN: 02425815

DIN: 08085505

Sarala Menon Hemang Ladani Rajneesh Singh
Place: Mumbai Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: April 28, 2023 DIN: 08499105
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

Corporate information

Stockholding Services Limited was incorporated on 14th February, 1995. It is engaged in the business of broking and 
advisory services from 14th March, 2006. The Company’s registered office is at Mahape, Navi Mumbai.

With effect from 28th March, 2014 Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd. (SHCIL) - the Holding Company, has become 
a subsidiary of IFCI Ltd. & hence IFCI Ltd. is the Ultimate Holding Company for Stockholding Services Ltd. from the said 
date.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

 Overall consideration

  The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the 
company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

 1.1. Basis of preparation

   The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain assets and liabilities where fair value model 
has been used, e.g. certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, etc. The Ind AS are prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules ,2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,2016.

   As per the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 on 11 October 2018, 
the Company presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity in the order of liquidity.

   Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in 
use.

   The Ind AS is applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April, 2016, being a Subsidiary of the Stock 
Holding Corporation of India Limited falling under the mandatory Phase1.

 1.2. Use of Estimates

   The preparation of the financial statements inconformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and there ported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which 
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

 1.3. Foreign currency translation

  Functional and presentation currency

  The financial statements are presented in INR, which is the functional currency

  Foreign currency transactions and balances

  i)  Transactions denominated in foreign currency are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the 
date of transaction.

  ii)  Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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  iii) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the period are restated at the period rates.

  iv) Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are carried at cost.

 1.4. Fair value measurement

    Financial instruments, such as, derivatives, equity investments, etc. are measured at fair value at each 
balance sheet date.

    Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

   • In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

   • In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

   • The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

    The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

    The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

    All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

   • Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

   •  Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

   •  Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.

    For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period.

    For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above.

  1.5. Revenue

    The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out 
in Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to determine when to recognize revenue and at 
what amount. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer. 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when services are provided and it is highly probable 
that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to occur.

    When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue the amount of 
the transaction price (excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance 
obligation.
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   The Company applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

   •  Identification of contract(s) with customers;

   • Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

   • Determination of transaction price;

   • Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

   • Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

   i) Brokerage fee income

     It is recognized on trade date basis and is exclusive of goods and service tax and securities transaction 
tax (STT) wherever applicable. Commission income on Initial Public Offer (IPO) and Follow on Public 
Offer (FPO) which are being booked on receipt basis

   ii) Account opening charges

     It is recognising entire account opening charges upfront on intimation of trading account number to 
the Customer. This is shown as a part of Revenue from operations.

   iii) Dividend Income

     Dividend is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting 
date.

   iv) Interest Income

     Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “Revenue from operations” 
in the statement of profit and loss.

   v) Cheques dishonoured/bounced Income

    Charges collected on cheques dishonoured/bounced are recognized on actual basis.

 1.6. Operating expenses

  Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.

 1.7. Property, plant and equipment

   Items of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PP&E are added to 
its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed 
standard of performance.

   Depreciation on PP&E is charged under the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for the below tabulated class of assets wherein a lesser useful 
life has been estimated due to rapid advancement in technology:

Particulars Useful life as per 
Schedule II (in year)

Useful life as per estimated by 
the management (in year)

1. Motor Car 8 3

2. Mobiles 5 2

3. Servers & Networks 6 4
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  Useful life & residual value for other items of PP&E:

Particulars Useful life w.e.f. 
01.04.2014

Useful life up to 
31.03.2014

Residual Value - Nil Residual Value 5 %

1. Plant & Machinery 15 20

2. Furniture & Fixtures 10 15

3. Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 20

4. Office Equipment 5 20

5. Computer Hardware : End user devices such as 
Desktops, Laptops etc.

3 3

   The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. 
An item of PP&E and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

  Useful life of leased hold premises is considered at 8 years.

   The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 1.8. Intangible assets

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

   Computer software which forms an integral part of the related hardware is capitalised along with the hardware 
as fixed asset. Software which are not an integral part of computer hardware and from which future economic 
benefits are expected are treated as intangible assets.

   Software developed internally is recognized as an asset at cost when significant economic benefits are expected 
to accrue in future. Cost comprises all expenditure that can be directly attributed for creation, production and 
making the software ready for its intended use and excludes any tax for which input credit is taken.

   All finite-lived intangible assets, including capitalised internally developed software, are accounted for using 
the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment 
testing. The following useful lives are applied:

Particulars Useful life w.e.f. 
01.04.2014

Useful life up to 
31.03.2014

Residual Value - Nil Residual Value 5 %

1. Computer Software 3 3

   Amortisation has been included within ‘depreciation and amortisation expense. Subsequent expenditures on 
the maintenance of intangible assets are expensed as incurred. The carrying amount of an intangible asset is 
derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. When 
an intangible asset is disposed off, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss within other income or other 
expenses.

 1.9. Leased Assets

   Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize most leases in the books to accounts. Lessees are required to initially 
recognize a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for the right to 
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use the underlying asset for the lease term. The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease 
payments to be made over the lease term. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the 
lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives received, the lessee’s initial direct costs (e.g., 
commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and dismantling costs. Lessees accrete the lease liability 
to reflect interest and reduce the liability to reflect lease payments made. The related right of-use asset is 
depreciated in accordance with the depreciation requirements of Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. For 
lessees that depreciate the right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis, the aggregate of interest expense on the 
lease liability and depreciation of the right-of-use asset generally results in higher total periodic expense in the 
earlier periods of a lease. Lessees re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., 
change in the lease term, change in variable rents based on an index or rate), which is generally recognized as 
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

  Finance leases

   Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whether it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset. Key factors considered include 
the length of the lease term in relation to the economic life of the asset, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments in relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether the Company obtains ownership of the asset at the 
end of the lease term.

   For leases of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments are first allocated to each component based 
on the relative fair values of the respective lease interests. Each component is then evaluated separately for 
possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into consideration the fact that land normally has an indefinite 
economic life.

  The interest element of lease payments is charged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the period of the lease.

  Operating leases

   All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessee, payments on operating lease 
agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic 
basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit. Associated costs, such as maintenance and 
insurance, are expensed as incurred.

 1.10. Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and Equipment

   The Company reviews the carrying values of tangible and intangible assets for any possible impairment at each 
balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets net of 
selling price and value in use. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value based on appropriate discount rate. If at the balance sheet date there is any indication that 
a previously assessed impaired loss no longer exists then such loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that 
extent

   For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely 
independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment 
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefit from synergies of a related business combination and represent the lowest level within the 
Company at which management monitors goodwill.

   Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Company’s management as 
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or 
cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

   An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s (or cash-generating units) carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. To 
determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit 
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and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data 
used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted 
as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are 
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect current market assessments of the time value 
of money and asset-specific risk factors.

   Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 
that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an 
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

 1.11. Financial Instruments:

  a. Initial recognition

    The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial 
recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that 
are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way 
purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

  b.  Subsequent measurement

   i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost

     A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

     A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
Further, in cases where the company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are 
recognized in other comprehensive income.

   iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

     A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued 
through profit or loss.

   iv. Financial liabilities

     Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year 
from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of 
these instruments

  C. Derecognition

   Financial assets :

    The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not 
retain control of the financial asset.



28th Annual Report 2022-2338

Notes to financial statements (Contd.)

   Financial liabilities :

    The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire.

  D. Offsetting

    Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  E. Impairment

   The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

   - financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

   - financial assets measured at FVTPL- investments.

    At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt 
securities at FVTPL are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

    The Company considers that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 
90 days past due.

 1.12. Income taxes

   Tax expense for the Period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the 
net profit or loss for the period. Provision for current income tax is made on the basis of the assessable income 
under the Income tax Act, 1961.

    Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

   Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible 
temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s 
forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits 
on the use of any unused tax loss or credit.

 1.13. Cash and cash equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

 1.14. Equity, Reserves and Dividend payments

   Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued. Share premium includes any 
premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are 
deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits. Other components of equity include the 
following:

  • remeasurement of net defined benefit liability – comprises the actuarial losses from changes

  • in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan assets

  Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

  All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.
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   Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have 
been approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting date.

 1.15. Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits

  Post-employment benefit plans

   The Company provides post-employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit 
plans.

  Defined contribution plans

   Employee Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are considered as defined contribution 
plans and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Period when the respective 
contributions are due.

  Defined benefit plans

   Retirement Benefit in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on 
the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the balance sheet. 
Actuarial gain or losses if any are immediately recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss.

   Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. This is based on 
standard rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year-
end by reference to government or high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which 
the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

   Service cost on the Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Employee 
contributions, all of which are independent of the number of years of service, are treated as a reduction of 
service cost. Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability is included in finance costs. Gains and 
losses resulting from remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability are included in other comprehensive 
income.

  Short-term employee benefits

   Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current liabilities included in pension and 
other employee obligations, measured at the undiscounted amount that the Company expects to pay as a result 
of the unused entitlement.

 1.16. Provisions

   Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and as realisable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 
some or all of the provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

   If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

 1.17. Contingent liabilities

   Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes in respect of possible obligations that arise 
from past events but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

 1.18. Earnings per share

   Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income 
for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
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during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before other 
comprehensive income for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 1.19. Financial risk management

   The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and 
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The 
Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that 
derive directly from its operations.

   The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management 
oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior managements supported by Risk committee 
that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The 
policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below.

  Market risk

   Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other 
price risk, such as equity price. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and 
deposits. The company is not exposed to currency risk and other price risk.

  Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 
rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations and company’s investment in debt based 
financial assets viz. Fixed Deposits & Investments in Liquid Mutual Funds.

  Credit risk

   Credit risk is the risk that counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company is exposed 
to this risk for various financial instruments, for example trade & other receivables, placing fixed deposits, 
investment in mutual funds, etc.

   The company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified by the company, 
and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The company’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy 
customers wherein the credit given is backed by either cash margin in client’s account or guarantee by the Sub 
brokers.

  Liquidity risk

   Liquidity risk is that the company might be unable to meet its obligations. The company manages its liquidity 
needs by monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as forecast 
cash inflows and outflows due in day-to-day business.

   The company’s objective is to maintain cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements. 
The company considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in 
particular its cash resources and trade receivables. The company’s existing cash resources and trade receivables 
significantly exceed the current cash outflow requirements. Cash flows from trade and other receivables are all 
contractually due within six months.

 1.20.Segment reporting

   The Company’s business is to provide broking services, to its clients, in the capital markets in India.

   All other activities of the Company are ancillary to the main business. As such, there are no reportable segments 
that need to be reported separately as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.
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 1.21. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

   When preparing the financial statements, management makes a number of judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

   The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that 
have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

  Recognition of deferred tax assets

   The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that 
future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or 
economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

  Useful lives of depreciable assets

   Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the 
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may 
change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.

  Impairment of non-financial assets

   Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of 
disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for 
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use 
calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do 
not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments 
that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the 
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used 
for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite 
useful lives recognised by the Company.

  Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

   Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard 
rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these 
assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

  Fair value measurement

   Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active 
market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions 
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on 
observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best 
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s 
length transaction at the reporting date.

  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

   The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing 
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the 
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.
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Note 2 : Cash and cash equivalents (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Cash in hand  0.34  0.10 

Balance with Bank

 Balances with banks - In current accounts (Own account)  217.97  83.94 

 Balances with banks - In current accounts (Client account)  6,414.21  10,605.18 

- Balances with banks - In current accounts  6,632.18  10,689.12 

- Fixed deposit with banks (maturity within 3 months)*  -    4,949.24 

Total  6,632.52  15,638.46 

* Fixed deposits lien to

Stock exchanges/clearing corporation  -    4,849.24 

Note 3 : Bank balance other than Note (2) above (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Fixed deposit with bank*  8,392.50  6,551.50 

Total  8,392.50  6,551.50 

* Fixed deposits lien to (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Stock exchanges/clearing member & corporation  6,889.50  6,546.50 

Collateral security against bank guarantee  1,005.00  5.00 

Collateral security against bank overdraft facility  498.00  -   

Note 4 : Trade receivables (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Secured *

 Undisputed trade receivables - considered good  4,824.31  19,092.66 

Unsecured

 Undisputed trade receivables  - which have significant increase in credit risk  10.22  75.30 

  4,834.53  19,167.96 

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance  (10.22)  (75.30)

Total  4,824.31  19,092.66 

*1. In term of agreement with SHCIL,  trade receivables are Guaranteed by SHCIL.

*2. Trade receivables includes `197.88 Lakhs (previous year ` 114 Lakhs) due from holding company.
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Movements in the Impairment Loss Allowance (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  75.30  74.89 

Add : Addition during the year  -    0.41 

Less : Reversal/write off during the year  (65.08)  -   

Closing balance  10.22  75.30 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023 (` in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
-1year

1-2years 2-3 years More than 
3years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

 4,182.93  641.38  -    -    -    4,824.31 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

 -    0.49  -    -    9.73  10.22 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2023 (` in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
-1year

1-2years 2-3 years More than 
3years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

 18,734.94  116.82  176.52  64.38  -    19,092.66 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

 -    -    -    -    75.30  75.30 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -   
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Note 5 : Investments (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Investment at fair value through profit and loss

In Equity Shares (Quoted)

LIC of India Ltd.  177.34  -   

(As at March 31,2023 : 33,170 Shares, Face Value of ` 10) 
(As at March 31,2022  : NIL)

In Mutual Fund (Unquoted)

- Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund  0.01  0.01 

(As at March 31,2023 : 2.835 Units, Face Value of ` 188.1717) 
(As at March 31,2022 : 2.835 Units, Face Value of ` 184.6154)

Total  177.35  0.01 

Disclosures (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Aggregate book value of quoted investments  177.34  -   

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments  0.01  0.01 

(i) At Cost  -    -   

(ii) At Amortised Cost  -    -   

(iii) At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   

(iv) At Fair Value through Profit or Loss  177.35  0.01 

 (i) Investments outside India  -    -   

 (ii) Investments in India  177.35  0.01 

Note 6 : Other financial assets (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

(i) Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)

 - Capital deposit with Exchanges  54.14  50.25 

 - Deposits with Clearing Member (Holding Co.)  10.00  12.00 

 - Security deposits - Others  28.38  29.12 

 - Margin deposits with exchange  3,144.48  3,993.97 

 - Margin Deposits F&O & Others  1,661.10  1,381.92 

(ii) Other assets

 (unsecured, considered good)

 - Other deposit with Exchange  152.76  139.86 

 - Accrued interest on fixed deposit  41.14  48.04 

 (unsecured, significant increase in credit risk)

 - Other receivables  19.05  19.05 

 5,111.05  5,674.21 

 Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 42)  (19.05)  (19.05)

Total  5,092.00  5,655.16 

Note 7(a) : Current tax assets (net) (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Advance payment of taxes and Tax Deducted at Source (net of provision for 
taxes)

 76.94  128.94 

Total  76.94  128.94 
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Movements in the current tax assets (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening balance of assets (net of liability)  128.94  59.28 
Net taxes paid/(refund)  481.94  796.85 
Interest on income tax refund  -    -   
Provision for the current period  (506.34)  (727.19)
Taxes of the earlier period  (27.60)  -   
Closing balance of net liability/(assets)  76.94  128.94 

Note 8 : Deferred tax assets (net) (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Deferred tax assets on account of :
- Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets  22.27  27.91 
- Provision for expected credit loss  7.37  23.75 
- Provision for compensated Absences  8.36  7.51 
- Provision for Gratuity  -    -   
- Lease rental liabities  32.78  23.68 
Deferred tax liabilities on account of :
- Gratuity assets (net)  (1.25)  (0.02)
- Right to use of lease assets  (28.73)  (20.98)
Total  40.80  61.85 

Movements in the deferred tax assets (` in lakhs)

Particulars Opening 
balance

Recognised 
through profit 

and loss

Recognised 
through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

 Closing 
balance 

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets on account of :

- PPE and Intangible assets 27.91 5.64  -    22.27 

- Provision for expected credit loss 23.75 16.38  -    7.37 

- Provision for compensated Absences 7.51 (0.85)  -    8.36 

- Provision for Gratuity - -  -    -   

- Lease rental liabities 23.68 (9.10)  -    32.78 

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :

- Gratuity assets (net) (0.02) 0.40  (0.83)  (1.25)

- Right to use of lease assets (20.98) 7.75  -    (28.73)

Total 61.85 20.22  (0.83)  40.80 

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Deferred tax assets on account of :

- PPE and Intangible assets  23.85  (4.06)  -    27.91 

- Provision for expected credit loss  23.64  (0.11)  -    23.75 

- Provision for compensated Absences  8.16  0.65  -    7.51 

- Provision for Gratuity  1.60  1.85  0.25  -   

- Lease rental liabities 35.12 11.44  -    23.68 

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :

- Gratuity assets (net)  -    0.02  -    (0.02)

- Right to use of lease assets (33.21) (12.23)  -    (20.98)

Total 59.16 (2.44)  0.25  61.85 
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StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly SHCIL Services Limited)

Note 10 : Intangible assets under development

The Company has entered into agreement for purchase of integrated software & its required set-up, and intangible assets 
are under development as on the balance sheet date.

As at March 31, 2023 (` in lakhs)

Intangible assets under development Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress  154.90  386.00  -    -    540.90 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  154.90  386.00  -    -    540.90 

As at March 31, 2022 (` in lakhs)

Intangible assets under development Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress  386.00  -    -    -    386.00 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  386.00  -    -    -    386.00 

Note 11 : Intangible assets (` in lakhs)

Particulars Computer 
Software

Right To Use of 
Lease Assets

Total

(i) Current Year
 Gross Block
 As at April 1, 2022  457.69  191.46  649.15 
 Addition  4.57  85.10  89.67 
 Disposal/adjustments  -    (64.00)  (64.00)
 As at March 31, 2023  462.26  212.56  674.82 

 Accumulated depreciation
 As at April 1, 2022  437.08  108.15  545.23 
 Amortisation  12.53  54.25  66.78 
 Disposal/adjustments  -    (64.00)  (64.00)
 As at March 31, 2023  449.61  98.40  548.01 

 Carrying amount as at March 31, 2023  12.65  114.16  126.81 

(ii) Previous year
 Gross Block
 As at April 1, 2021  450.56  188.16  638.72 
 Addition  7.13  3.30  10.43 
 Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   
 As at March 31, 2022  457.69  191.46  649.15 

 Accumulated depreciation
 As at April 1, 2021  399.25  56.21  455.46 
 Amortisation  37.83  51.94  89.77 
 Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   
 As at March 31, 2022  437.08  108.15  545.23 

 Carrying amount as at March 31, 2022  20.61  83.31  103.92 
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Note 12 : Other non-financial assets (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Prepayments  150.23  119.56 

Advance to vendors  186.57  139.22 

Gratuity plan assets (net of provision) (refer note 39)  4.95  0.08 

Balance with government authorities  292.48  167.23 

Other receivables  33.45  50.01 

Total  667.68  476.10 

Note 13 : Payables (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

(i) Trade payable

 - total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   

 -  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

  Dues to holding company - sub brokerage  614.29  63.77 

  Dues to other Sub Brokers  5.47  5.48 

  Client Dues  15,333.20  36,355.21 

 15,952.96  36,424.46 

(ii) Other payable

 - total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   

 -  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 268.67  687.51 

 268.67  687.51 

Total  16,221.63  37,111.97 

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has sent letters to vendors to confirm whether they are covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act 2006 as well as they have filed required memorandum with prescribed authority. Based on and to the 
extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at the period/year end are furnished 
below:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid  -    -   

Interest due on above and the unpaid interest  -    -   

Interest paid  -    -   

Payment made beyond the appointed day during the period  -    -   

Interest due and payable for the period of delay  -    -   

Interest accrued and remain unpaid  -    -   

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding period  -    -   
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As at March 31, 2023 (` in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods  
from due date of payment/transaction

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 
years 

(i)  MSME  -    -    -    -   

(ii)  Others  15,952.96  -    -   

(iii)  Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -   

(iv)  Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -   

Total  15,952.96  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2022 (` in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods  
from due date of payment/transaction

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 
years 

(i)  MSME  -    -    -    -   
(ii)  Others  36,389.96  30.12  4.38 
(iii)  Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -   
(iv)  Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -   
Total  36,389.96  30.12  4.38  -   

Note 14 : Other financial liabilities (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Margin deposits from other  sub broker  78.46  72.52 

Deposits from others  9.00  2.00 

Due to Holding Company - Others  196.86  261.56 

Employee benefits payable  93.00  140.00 

Lease rental liabilities (refer note 35)  130.24  94.08 

Other payables (includes provision for expenses)  291.03  545.55 

Total  798.59  1,115.71 

Note 15 : Provisions (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 39)

 Provision for compensated absences  33.22  29.84 

Total  33.22  29.84 

Note 16 : Other non-financial liabilities (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

Statutory dues including provident fund and taxes (includes amount due on 
settlement - refer note 39)

 165.79  214.87 

Others-(client's fund)  26.20  479.89 

Payable to exchange  14.21  9.20 

Income received In advance (refer note 40)  -    61.64 

Total  206.20  765.60 
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Note 17 : Equity Share Capital (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
 Number `  Number `

(A) Authorised, Issued , Subscribed & Paid up
 Authorised
 Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid  18,000,000  1,800.00  18,000,000  1,800.00 
  7% Non-Cumulative Convertible Preference 

Shares of ` 10 each fully paid
 2,000,000  200.00  2,000,000  200.00 

 20,000,000  2,000  20,000,000  2,000.00 
 Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
 Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid  6,089,703  608.97  6,089,703  608.97 
 Total  6,089,703  608.97  6,089,703  608.97 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
 Number `  Number `

(B)  Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the 
beginning and end of the year

 Equity Shares
 Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  6,089,703  608.97  6,089,703  608.97 
 Addition during the year  -  -  -  - 
 Shares outstanding at the end of the period  6,089,703  608.97  6,089,703  608.97 

(C) Terms/rights attached to shares

 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

  The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity share 
is entitled to one vote per share except in the case of voting by show of hands.

(D)  Details of shares held by holding company & shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
 Number %  Number %

 Equity Shares
 Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited  6,089,696 99.99 6,089,696 99.99

(E) Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years

 The Company has not issued any bonus shares.

 The Company has not undertaken any buyback of shares.

(F) Promoter details

 The followings are disclosure of shares held by promoters 

Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares % Change 
during the year

As at March 31, 2023
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited  6,089,696 99.99 NIL
As at March 31, 2022
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited  6,089,696 99.99 NIL
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Note 18 : Other equity (` in lakhs)

Particulars As At
March 31, 2023

 As At 
March 31, 2022

Reserve & surplus

(a) Securities premium

 Opening balance  928.45  928.45 

 Changes during the year  -    -   

 Closing balance  928.45  928.45 

(b) Retained earnings

 Opening balance  7,648.49  6,396.40 

 Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  9.23  -   

 Dividends  (1,065.70)  (883.39)

 Profit for the year  1,388.97  2,135.48 

 Closing balance  7,980.99  7,648.49 

(c) Other Comprehensive income

 Opening balance  (12.58)  (11.84)

 Changes during the year  2.49  (0.74)

 Closing balance  (10.09)  (12.58)

Total  8,899.35  8,564.36 

Nature and purpose of the reserves
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes such as 
issuance of bonus shares, writing off the preliminary expenses in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less dividends or other distributions paid to 
shareholders. It also includes actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognised in other comprehensive 
income (net of taxes). It are available to distribution to shareholders.

Note 19 : Interest income (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on deposits with banks/exchanges  626.86  588.21 

Funding and late payments  607.93  187.91 

Total  1,234.79  776.12 

Note 20 : Dividend income (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Dividend on investment in mutual funds  0.33  14.20 

Total  0.33  14.20 
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Note 21 : Fees and commission income (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Brokerage income  8,204.50  10,947.65 

Distribution income  27.84  22.02 

Depository income  2.30  -   

Total  8,234.64  10,969.67 

Note 22 : Other operating income (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Other broking operating income  51.53  63.73 

Total  51.53  63.73 

Note 23 : Other income (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Sundry balances written back (refer note 42)  -    0.01 

Reversal of provisions  3.33  48.83 

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment  0.06  -   

Miscellaneous Income  7.68  6.58 

Total  11.07  55.42 

Note 24 : Finance costs (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Interest cost on lease liability (refer note 35)  14.15  10.77 

Financing charges  9.69  -   

Total  23.84  10.77 

Note 25 : Fees and commission expense (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Sub - brokerage expenses  5,111.95  6,979.32 

Total  5,111.95  6,979.32 

Note 26 : Net loss on fair value changes (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Net Loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(i) On trading portfolio

 - Investments  91.90  -   

Total  91.90  -   
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Note 27 : Impairment on financial instruments (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

On financial instruments measured at fair value through OCI  -    -   

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost

- trade receivables (refer note 46)  -    0.41 

Total  -    0.41 

Note 28 : Employee benefits expenses (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Salaries, allowances and bonus  647.58  691.04 

Contribution to provident and other funds  23.57  22.20 

Staff welfare expenses  37.27  21.11 

Training and development  2.91  4.75 

Total  711.33  739.10 

Note 29 : Depreciation, amortization and impairment (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Depreciation

- on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 9)  49.70  40.80 

Amortization

- on Intangible assets (refer note 11)  66.78  89.77 

Total  116.48  130.57 

Note 30 : Other expenses (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Rent, taxes and energy costs

Rent , rates & Taxes  0.08  9.79 

Electricity charges  22.70  18.16 

Service tax and GST  expenses  -    4.70 

Repairs and maintenance

Repairs & maintenance  -  software (refer note 49)  513.95  285.81 

Repairs & maintenance  - plant & machinery  18.87  13.77 

Repairs & Maintenance  - others  7.56  13.23 

Communication costs

Connectivity charges  63.08  33.57 

Postage & courier  12.49  23.54 

Telephone & communication  13.73  6.58 

Printing and stationery  23.90  22.36 

Advertisement, publicity and business promotions

Advertisement & publicity  56.80  52.08 
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Note 30 : Other expenses (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Dealer Incentive  2.36  1.34 

Sales promotion expenses  35.34  17.06 

Director’s fees, allowances and expenses  27.40  25.20 

Auditor’s fees and expenses*  16.60  16.60 

Legal and professional charges

Legal fees  22.44  9.09 

Professional fees  40.29  118.97 

Insurance  113.47  86.09 

Other expenditure

Outsourcing Expenses - professional  28.87  20.80 

Outsourcing Expenses - contractor  170.79  142.21 

Exchange/DP expenses  118.36  42.22 

Bank charges  7.00  5.15 

Security charges  11.24  10.82 

Subscription charges  37.79  50.15 

Travelling & conveyance  44.12  40.16 

Corporate Social Responsibility  39.00  28.00 

Sundry balances written off (refer note 42)  0.26  -   

Other miscellaneous expenses  85.24  61.29 

Total  1,533.73  1,158.74 

*Payments to the auditors (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

(a) As Auditor,  15.00  15.00 

(b) For taxation matters,  1.00  1.00 

(c) For company law matters,  -    -   

(d) For other services,  -    -   

(e) For reimbursement of expenses  0.60  0.60 

Total  16.60  16.60 

(contd.)
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Note 31: Tax expense

A new Section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act, 1961, by the Government of India which provides an option to 
companies for paying income tax at reduced rates in accordance with the provision/conditions defined in the said section. 
The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in the previous 
year. Accordingly, the Company has applied applicable tax rate to calculate the Provision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax 
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

(a) Tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

(i) Current Tax

 - Current period/ year's tax  506.34  727.19 

 - Earlier year  27.60  -   

 533.94  727.19 

(ii) Deferred Tax

 Origination and reversal of temporary differences

 - Charged/(Credited) to profit & loss statement  20.22  (2.44)

 - Charged/(Credited) to other comprehensive income  0.83  (0.25)

  21.05  (2.69)

Total  554.99  724.50 

(b)  A reconciliation of Income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax 
rate to the income before taxes is summarized below:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Profit before taxes  1,943.13  2,860.23 

Enacted tax rates in India (%) 25.168% 25.168%

Computed expected tax expense  489.05  719.86 

Adjustments :

- Provision for doubtful debts/write off  (16.38)  0.10 

- Employee benefits (net)  0.84  (2.52)

- Depreciation  8.02  17.13 

- Other non-deductible expenses  40.71  12.95 

- Other deductible expenses  (15.90)  (20.33)

Income tax expenses  506.34  727.19 

(c) The Company does not have unused tax losses.
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Note 32 : Contingent liabilities and Commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities

 i)  Bank Guarantee are been taken from banks and kept with exchanges as a margin to meet the margin obligation

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

a) Bank guarantee with exchange as margin (` in lakhs) 2000 2000

b) Fixed deposit pledged for bank guarantee (` in lakhs) 1000 1000

 ii)  The Company has received summons dated 6th March 2018 from Court of Additional Chief Metropolitan 
Magistrate, 4th court, Girgaon, Mumbai) for violation of provisions of section 81, 193 and 285 of Companies Act 
1956 which took place prior to financial year 2008-09. SHCIL Services Limited had earlier filed the compounding 
applications with Regional Director, Mumbai. However on follow up it was understood that the compounding 
applications are not traceable. Now on the advice of legal consultants we have filed a fresh compounding 
application dated September 11, 2018 with ROC. The Compounding fee is the prerogative of Court, however 
based on past compounding orders, penal provision and as discussed with Advocates, the liability on account 
of Compounding application will not be a material amount and the same is un ascertainable at the present.

 iii)  The Hon’ble Supreme Court has in its recent decision dated 28 February 2019, relating to components/
allowances paid that need to be taken into account while computing an employer’s contribution of provident 
fund under the EPF Act. The Company is in the process of evaluating the method of computation of its PF 
contribution prospectively and would record any further effect in its financial statements, on receiving additional 
clarity on the subject.

(b) Commitments

  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for the year ended 
March 31, 2023 - ` 52.10 lakhs (Previous year ended March 31, 2022 - ` 273.76 lakhs )

Note 33 : Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year for the purpose of basic EPS plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued 
on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Profit for the period - for basic EPS (` In lakhs)  1,388.97  2,135.48 
Weighted average no. of shares - basic EPS  6,089,703  6,089,703 
Basic EPS (`)  22.81  35.07 

Profit for the period  - for diluted EPS (` In lakhs)  1,388.97  2,135.48 
Weighted average no. of shares - diluted EPS  6,089,703  6,089,703 
Diluted EPS (`)  22.81  35.07 

Face value per share (`)  10  10 

Note 34 :  Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) which subsumes the employment and 
post employment benefits Presidential assent in September 2020. The code has been published in the Gazette of India.  
However, the date on which  the Code will come into effect is not mentioned.  The Company will evaluate the rules, assess 
the impact if any, and account for the same once the code become effective.
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Note 35 : Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use 
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the 
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases (underlying asset of less than ` 1,50,000). For these short-term and low value 
leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the company. Lease liabilities are re-measured with 
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment on whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option.

The Company has entered into Operating Lease Agreement with SHCIL for Office Premises in :

(a)  4th Cross Street, Puducherry , whereby SHCIL had granted to the Company, the liberty to use and occupy the 
Demised Premises as a office space for a period of 36 months w. e. f. from October 01, 2021 purely as a License-
cum-Allottee of office space, without having any right, title or interest upon the demised premises.

(b)  Server Rack space had grated to the company, the liability to use and occupy the demised premised as keeping  of 
server for the period of five years w. e. f. from July 2020 as license -cum- Allottee of office Server space without 
having any right , title , or interest upon the demised premises. The Company has re-entered into agreement with 
SHCIL for said arrangement for the period of five years after the end the said arrangement.

(c)  Mahape, Navi Mumbai, whereby SHCIL has granted to the Company, the liberty to use and occupy the Demised 
Premises as a office space for a period of three years  w. e. f. from April 1, 2022 purely as a License-cum-Allottee of 
office space, without having any right, title or interest upon the demised premises.

Disclosure

(i) The details of carrying amount of Right to use Asset of the company are as follows:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  83.31  131.95 

Add : Addition during the period  85.10  3.30 

Less :Deletion during the period  -    -   

Less : Depreciation  54.25  51.94 

Closing balance  114.16  83.31 
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(ii) Movements in lease liabilities

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  94.08  160.81 

Add : Addition during the period  85.10  3.30 

Add : interest cost during the period  14.15  10.77 

Less :Deletion during the period  -    -   

Less : lease payments  63.09  80.80 

Closing balance  130.24  94.08 

(iii) Following is maturity analysis of contractual discounted cash flows of lease liabilities

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Less than six months  26.87  11.84 
Six months to one year  28.92  12.79 
One year to three years  74.45  69.45 

Three years to Five years  -    -   
More than five years  -    -   
Closing balance  130.24  94.08 

(iv) Amount recognised in statement of profit & loss

(` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

Interest cost on lease liabilities  14.15  10.77 
Depreciation on right of use assets  54.25  51.94 
Rental Expenses recorded for short-term lease payments not included in 
the measurement of the lease liability

 0.94  1.80 

(v) Amount recognised in statement of cash flow

(` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

Cash payments for the principal & interest portion of the lease liability 
within financing activities

 63.09  80.80 

Short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and 
variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease 
liability within operating activities.

 0.94  1.80 

Note 35 : Leases (Contd.)
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Note 36 : Related Party Disclosures

A. The related parties for SSL as per the new Companies Act would inter-alia include the following  

 (a) Ultimate Holding Company of SSL

 IFCI Limited

(b) Holding Company of SSL
 Stock Holding Corporation of India limited (SHCIL)

(c) Associate Company of SSL
 Stock Holding Document Management Services Limited (subsidiary of SHCIL)

(d) Key Management Personnel (KMP) of SSL
  1.  Mr. Ramesh N G S - Non executive Director (Chairman)*
  2.  Mr. Amit Dassi-Non executive Director*
  3.  Mrs. Sarala Menon-Non executive Director*
  4.  Mr. G Anantharaman -Independent Director*
  5.  Mr. D.C. Jain -Independent Director *
  6.  Mr. Sanjay Pote - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
  7. Mr. Rajneesh singh - Company Secretary
  8.  Mr. Hemang Ladani-Chief Financial Officer

  *   The ICAI - Ind AS Transition facilitation group’s bulletin dated July 31,2017 clarified independent directors coverage under definition 
of KMP under para 9 of Ind AS 24. Disclosures being made in this section accordingly for said purposes.

B. Particulars of Transaction with Related Parties 

(` in lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Nature of transactions Relationship  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

1 Brokerage income Ultimate holding company  -    -   

Holding Company  0.07  0.10 

Key Managerial Personnel 
and their relatives

 0.06  0.04 

2 Service charges received Holding Company  41.16  29.84 

3 Outsourcing expenses Associate Company  73.19  71.15 

4 Sub - brokerage expenses Holding Company  4,454.81  5,733.37 

5 Reimbursement of expenses (net) Holding Company  274.03  187.97 

6 Sitting fees Key Managerial  Personnel  15.60  12.60 

7 Sub-broker deposit received Holding Company  1,500.00  3,000.00 

8 Sub-broker deposit refunded Holding Company  1,500.00  3,200.00 

9 Salary/deputation cost of  employees Holding Company  90.40  78.18 

Key Managerial  Personnel  111.44  95.07 

C. Particulars of outstanding with Related Parties as on balance sheet date

(` in lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Nature of transactions Relationship As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

1 Trade and other payable Holding Company  547.65  434.73 

Associate Company  7.14  7.31 

2 Trade and other receivable Holding Company  206.49  95.19 

3 Margin deposits receivable Holding Company  1,671.11  1,393.42 
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Note 37 : Managerial Remuneration (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

MD&CEO , Company Secretary & CFO

Salary, Allowances & Incentives (Including GST)  122.83  105.34 

Contribution to Provident Fund  4.14  3.66 

Contribution to Retirement Benefits  2.52  2.37 

Total  129.49  111.37 

Note 38 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

1.  Details of CSR spent

 (a) Gross amount required to be spent during the period  39.00  28.00 

 (b) Amount spent during the period on

  (i) Construction/acquisition of any assets  -    -   

  (ii) On purposes other than (i) above - in cash  39.00  28.00 

 (c) Amount yet to be spent  -    -   

Note 39 : Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans: 

 The company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss;

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Contribution to Employees Provident and other Funds  23.57  22.20 

 Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund  -    -   

 Total  23.57  22.20 

B. Defined benefits plans:

 1. Gratuity

 (i) Funded status of the plan

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Present value of unfunded obligations  -    -   

Present value of funded obligations  40.11  36.53 

Fair value of plan assets  45.06  36.61 

Net Liability (Asset)  (4.95)  (0.08)
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 (ii) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  36.53  40.18 

Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

Current service cost  6.05  5.91 

Interest cost  2.61  2.70 

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in financial assumptions  (1.22)  (2.15)

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience  (2.25)  2.90 

Past service cost  -    -   

Benefits paid  (1.61)  (13.00)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  40.11  36.53 

 (iii) Reconciliation of plan assets

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening value of plan assets  36.61  33.80 

Transfer in/(out) plan assets  -    -   

Expenses deducted from the fund  -    -   

Interest Income  2.83  2.46 

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  (0.15)  (0.23)

Assets distributed on settlements  -    -   

Contributions by employer  7.38  13.58 

Assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase  -    -   

Exchange differences on foreign plans  -    -   

Benefits paid  (1.61)  (13.00)

Closing value of plan assets  45.06  36.61 

 (iv) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Service cost: 

 Current service cost  6.05  5.91 

 Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement  -    -   

Net interest cost  (0.22)  0.23 

Total  5.83  6.14 

Note 39 : Employee benefits (Contd.)
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 (v) Amounts recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations: 

 Due to Change in financial assumptions  (1.22)  (2.15)

 Due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

 Due to experience adjustments  (2.25)  2.90 

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  0.15  0.23 

Total  (3.32)  0.99 

 (vi) Composition of the plan assets

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Government of India Securities 0% 0%

State Government Securities 0% 0%

High quality corporate bonds 0% 0%

Equity shares of listed companies 0% 0%

Property 0% 0%

Special Deposit Scheme 0% 0%

Policy of insurance 100% 100%

Bank Balance 0% 0%

Other Investments 0% 0%

Total 100% 100%

(vii) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Net opening provision in books of accounts  (0.08)  6.37 

Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

Transfer (in)/out plan assets  -    -   

Employee Benefit Expense  5.83  6.14 

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  (3.32)  0.99 

 2.43  13.50 

Benefits paid by the Company  -    -   

Contributions to plan assets  (7.38)  (13.58)

Closing provision in books of accounts  (4.95)  (0.08)

Note 39 : Employee benefits (Contd.)
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(viii) Principle actuarial assumptions (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Discount Rate 7.50% 7.25%

Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal Rates  2% p.a  
at all ages 

 2% p.a  
at all ages 

Rate of Return on Plan Assets  7.50% p.a.  7.25% p.a. 

 (ix) Sensitivity to key assumptions (Change in DBO)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

% (` in lakhs) % (` in lakhs)

Discount rate varied by +0.5% -5.72%  37.82 -6.04%  34.33 

-0.5% 6.20%  42.61 6.57%  38.93 

Salary growth varied by +0.5% 5.36%  42.27 6.08%  38.76 

-0.5% -5.58%  37.88 -6.15%  34.29 

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) varied by 10% W.R. x 110% 0.54%  40.33 0.49%  36.71 

W.R. x 90% -0.73%  39.82 -0.51%  36.35 

 (x) Expected benefit payments

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Cash flows
(` in lakhs)

 % Cash flows
(` in lakhs)

 % 

Year 1  1.16 1.00%  0.97 0.90%

Year 2  1.23 1.10%  1.06 1.00%

Year 3  1.30 1.10%  1.15 1.10%

Year 4  1.39 1.20%  1.22 1.20%

Year 5  1.48 1.30%  1.30 1.30%

Year 6 to Year 10  17.61 15.80%  15.67 15.20%

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.

 2 Leave encashments

 (a) Ordinary leave benefits

(i) Funded status of the plan

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Present value of unfunded obligations  -    -   

Present value of funded obligations  22.23  20.03 

Fair value of plan assets  -    -   

Net Liability (Asset)  22.23  20.03 

Note 39 : Employee benefits (Contd.)
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(ii) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  20.03  20.05 

Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

Current service cost  10.44  11.56 

Interest cost  1.31  1.24 

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in financial assumptions  (0.24)  (0.41)

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience  0.04  (2.84)

Past service cost  -    -   

Benefits paid  (9.35)  (9.58)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  22.23  20.03 

(iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Service cost: 

Current service cost  10.44  11.56 

Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement  -    -   

Net interest cost  1.31  1.24 

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations: 

Due to Change in financial assumptions  (0.24)  (0.41)

Due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

Due to experience adjustments  0.04  (2.84)

 Total  11.55  9.56 

(iv) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Net opening provision in books of accounts  20.03  20.05 

Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

Employee Benefit Expense  11.55  9.56 

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   

 31.58  29.60 

Benefits paid by the Company  (9.35)  (9.58)

Contributions to plan assets  -    -   

Closing provision in books of accounts  22.23  20.03 

Note 39 : Employee benefits (Contd.)
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(v) Principle actuarial assumptions (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Discount Rate 7.50% 7.25%

Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal Rates  2% p.a at all 
ages 

 2% p.a at all ages 

Leave Availment Rate  5% p.a.  5% p.a. 

Leave Encashment Rate  10% p.a.  10% p.a. 

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

% (` in lakhs) % (` in lakhs)

Discount rate varied by +0.5% -2.11%  21.76 -2.17%  19.59 

-0.5% 2.20%  22.72 2.27%  20.48 

Salary growth varied by +0.5% 2.24%  22.72 2.31%  20.49 

-0.5% -2.17%  21.75 -2.23%  19.58 

 Withdrawal rate (W.R.) varied by 10% W.R. x 110% -0.14%  22.19 -0.12%  20.00 

W.R. x 90% 0.14%  22.25 0.12%  20.05 

(vii) Expected benefit payments (` in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Cash flows `  % Cash flows `  % 

Year 1  4.26 13.10%  3.78 12.80%

Year 2  3.74 11.50%  3.32 11.30%

Year 3  3.29 10.10%  2.92 9.90%

Year 4  2.89 8.70%  2.56 8.70%

Year 5  2.53 7.70%  2.25 7.60%

Year 6 to Year 10  9.12 27.90%  8.16 27.70%

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.

 (b) Sick leave benefits

(i) Principle actuarial assumptions (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Discount Rate 7.50% 7.25%

Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal Rates  2% p.a  
at all ages 

 2% p.a  
at all ages 

Leave Availment Rate  3% p.a.  3% p.a. 

Leave Encashment Rate  0% p.a.  0% p.a. 
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(ii) Sensitivity to key assumptions (Change in DBO) (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2023

For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

% Amount in ` % Amount in `

Discount rate varied by +0.5% -3.16%  10.64 -3.33%  9.48 

-0.5% 3.34%  11.35 3.54%  10.16 

Salary growth varied by +0.5% 3.41%  11.36 3.60%  10.16 

-0.5% -3.24%  10.63 -3.41%  9.48 

 Withdrawal rate (W.R.) varied by 10% W.R. x 110% -1.41%  10.83 -1.48%  9.66 

W.R. x 90% 1.44%  11.14 1.52%  9.96 

Note 40 : Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives revenue primarily from the broking business. Its other major revenue sources are the distribution 
income and interest income.

Disaggregate revenue information

1.  The table below presents disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2023 
by type of revenue segregated into its operating segments. The Company believes that this disaggregation best 
depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by market and other 
economic factors.

 Nature of Services

 (a)  Broking Income : Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services, in 
accordance with the terms of contract.

 (b)  Distribution Income : Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of 
the securities to the applicant. Fees for subscription based services are received periodically but are recognised 
as earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the contract

 (c)  Interest Income : Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them. Interest 
income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding from customers or 
on the financial instrument and the rate applicable.

 (d)  Depository income : Income from services rendered onbehalf of depository is recognised upon rendering of 
the services, in accordance with the terms of contract.

2. Disaggregate revenue information:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Broking income  8,204.50  10,947.65 

Distribution income  27.84  22.02 

Interest income  1,234.79  776.12 

Depository income  2.30  -   

Total  9,469.43  11,745.79 

Geographical markets

 India  9,469.43  11,745.79 

 Outside India  -    -   

Timing of revenue recognition 

 Service transferred at point in time  9,464.43  11,743.94 

 Service transferred over time  5.00  1.85 

Note 39 : Employee benefits (Contd.)
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3.  Contract Liability relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Contract Liabilities are 
recognised as revenue on completing the performance obligation.

Movements in the contract liabilities (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Prepaid brokerage 

Opening balance  60.11  76.93 

Add : Addition during the year  8.26  101.26 

Less : Revenue recognised during the year  (7.84)  (65.26)

Less : Refund to customer during the year  (60.52)  (52.82)

Closing balance  -    60.11 

 Amounts includes taxes.

4. Nature, timing of satisfaction of the performance obligation and significant payment terms.

 (a) Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services.     

 (b)  Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the securities to the 
applicant or as the case may be, on issue of the insurance policy to the applicant.     

 (c)  Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them as well as term deposits with 
banks. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
from customers or on the financial instrument and the rate applicable.     

   The above services are point in time in nature, and no performance obligation remains once the transaction is 
executed.

 (d)  Fees for subscription based services are received periodically but are recognised as earned on a pro-rata basis 
over the term of the contract, and are over the period in nature. 

5. Contract balances

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Assets 

Trade receivables (excluding impairment)  4,834.53  19,167.96 

Liabilities 

Trade payables  16,221.63  37,111.97 

Prepaid brokerage  -    60.11 

Note 41 : Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

Note 42 : 

The Company has framed a policy for written back certain payables for which no claim was received and also written off 
old balances as defined in the policy.

The following are details of the written back and written off;

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Written back  0.03  0.01 

Written off  0.29  -   
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Note 43 : Segment Reporting

The Company operates only in one segment i.e. stock broking and all other activities are ancillary to the main business.
Hence there are no reportable segments  as defined in Indian Accounting Standard  (IND AS -108) on “Segment Reporting”.

The Company operates one geographic segment namely ‘within India’, hence no separate information for geographic 
segment wise disclosure is required.

No single customer accounts for the revenue, which is equal or more than ten percent of the total revenue of the entity, 
hence no such segment could be identified.

Note 44 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

(` in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

within 12 
months

after 12 
months

within 12 
months

after 12 months

ASSETS 

(i) Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents  6,632.52  -    15,638.46  -   

(b) Bank balances other than (a) above  8,360.00  32.50  5,641.00  910.50 

(c) Trade receivables  4,824.31  -    19,092.66  -   

(d) Investments  -0.04  177.39  0.01  -   

(e) Other financial assets  4,846.72  245.28  1,569.82  4,085.34 

(ii) Non-financial assets

(a)  Current tax assets (net)  -    76.94  -    128.94 

(b)  Deferred tax assets (net)  -    40.80  -    61.85 

(c )  Property, plant and equipment  -    196.15  -    101.85 

(d)  Intangible assets under development  540.90  -    -    386.00 

(e)  Other Intangible assets  -    126.81  -    103.92 

(f)  Other non-financial assets  667.68  -    476.10  -   

Total Assets  25,872.09  895.87  42,418.05  5,778.40 

LIABILITIES 

(i) Financial liabilities

(a)  Payables  16,221.63  -    37,111.97  -   

(b)  Other financial liabilities  695.92  102.67  1,115.71  -   

(ii) Non-financial liabilities

(a)  Current tax liability (net)  -    -    -    -   

(b)  Provisions  8.09  25.13  4.78  25.06 

(c)  Other non-financial liabilities  206.20  -    765.60  -   

Total Liabilities  17,131.84  127.80  38,998.06  25.06 

Net Assets  8,740.25  768.07  3,419.99  5,753.34 
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Note 45 : Financial instruments 

A. Financial Instruments by category

  The following table shows the carrying amounts of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which are classified as 
Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) and Amortised 
Cost.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Classification As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Financial assets 

(a)  Cash and cash equivalents  At amortised  6,632.52  15,638.46 

(b)  Term deposits with banks  At amortised  8,392.50  6,551.50 

(c)  Trade receivables  At amortised  4,824.31  19,092.66 

(d)  Investments  FVTPL  177.35  0.01 

(e)  Other financial assets  At amortised  5,092.00  5,655.16 

Total  25,118.68  46,937.79 

Financial liabilities 

(a)  Trade payables At amortised  15,952.96  36,424.46 

(b)  Other payables At amortised  268.67  687.51 

(c)  Other financial liabilities At amortised  798.59  1,115.71 

Total  17,020.22  38,227.68 

B. Fair value hierarchy

  The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

  This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost. To provide an indication 
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into 
the three levels prescribed under the Indian Accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath 
the table.

  Level 1: This level hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

  Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included 
in level 3.
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 The following table summarises financial instruments measured at fair value

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2  Level 3  Total 

As at March 31, 2023 

 Financial assets 

 Financial investments at FVTPL  177.34  -    -    177.34 

 - Investment in Quoted Shares  0.01  -    -    0.01 

 - Mutual funds 

As at March 31, 2022 

 Financial assets 

 Financial investments at FVTPL 

 - Mutual funds  0.01  -    -    0.01 

 Net assets value (NAV) of the scheme is technique used to determine fair value of mutual funds. 

C. Transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
 There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3.

D. Financial instruments not measured at fair value
  Financial assets not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, term & other deposits, trade 

receivables, and other financial assets. These are financial assets whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, 
due to their short-term nature.

  Additionally, financial liabilities such as trade payables and other financial liabilities are not measured at FVTPL, 
whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature. 

Note 46 : Financial risk management
Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through an integrated 
risk management framework, including on-going identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and 
other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual 
within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:

(a) Credit risk

(b) Liquidity risk

(c) Market risk

The Company has established various policies with respect to such risks which set forth limits, mitigation strategies and 
internal controls to be implemented by the three lines of defence approach provided below. The Company’s board of 
directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The 
board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its 
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment 
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The risk management system features a “three lines of defence” approach:
1.  The first line of defence comprises its operational departments, which assume primary responsibility for their own 

risks and operate within the limits stipulated in various policies approved by the Board or by committees constituted 
by the Board.

2.  The second line of defence comprises specialised departments such as Risk Management Committee, Investment 
Committee, Internal Executive Audit Committee, and compliance. They employ specialised methods to identify and 

Note 45 : Financial instruments  (Contd.)
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assess risks faced by the operational departments and provide them with specialised risk management tools and 
methods, facilitate and monitor the implementation of effective risk management practices, develop monitoring tools 
for risk management, internal control and compliance, report risk related information and promote the adoption of 
appropriate risk prevention measures.

3.  The third line of defence comprises the internal audit department and external audit functions. They monitor and 
conduct periodic evaluations of the risk management, internal control and compliance activities to ensure the 
adequacy of risk controls and appropriate risk governance, and provide the Board with comprehensive feedback.

(A) Credit Risk
  Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their 

contractual obligation. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is 
willing to accept for individual counterparties, and by monitoring exposures in relations to such limits.

  The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of 
financial instruments presented in the financial statements. The Company’s major classes of fi nancial assets are 
cash and cash equivalents, loans, investment in mutual fund units, term deposits, trade receivables, security deposits 
and margin placed with the clearing member/corporation.

  Deposits with banks are considered to have negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with high rated 
banks/financial institutions as approved by the Board of directors. Security deposits are kept with stock exchanges 
for meeting minimum base capital requirements. These deposits do not have any credit risk. Investments include 
investment in liquid mutual fund units that are marketable securities of eligible financial institutions for a specified 
time period with high credit rating given by domestic credit rating agencies.

 Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and other receivables

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Trade receivables (net of impairment)  4,824  19,093 
Other financial assets (net of impairment)  5,092  5,655 
Total  9,916  24,748 

  (i) Trade receivables

    The Company applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a 
lifetime expected credit loss allowance (ECL) for all trade receivables.

    The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

    In term of agreement with SHCIL,  trade receivable  is Guarantee by SHCIL. To manage credit risk, the 
Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers and other counterparties, taking into 
account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of 
accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. The Company doesn’t have significant credit 
risk exposure to any single counter party or a group of counter parties as it has robust risk management, 
provision and write off policy for debtors. Trade receivables are monitored on periodic basis for any non-
recoverability of the dues. 

   The trade receivables at reporting date analysed by the length of time past due, are:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

1 - 30 days  3,283.37  18,911.71 
31 - 60 days  323.09  78.19 
61-90 days  471.39  30.61 
more than 90 days  756.68  147.44 
Total  4,834.53  19,167.96 

Note 46 : Financial risk management (Contd.)
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Movements in the impairment loss allowance is as follow;

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  75.30  74.89 

Addition during the year  -    0.41 

Reversal during the year  (65.08)  -   

Total  10.22  75.30 

  (ii) Other financial assets

The Company has recorded the embezzlement of fund as mentioned in note no. 41 under the other 
financial assets with significant increase in risk. The Company has provided impairment loss on entire 
amount.

Movements in the impairment loss allowance is as follow;

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  19.05  19.05 

Addition during the year  -    -   

Reversal during the year  -    -   

Total  19.05  19.05 

 (B) Liquidity risk

   Liquidity represents the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its financial obligations on 
time, both in normal and in stressed conditions, without having to liquidate assets or raise funds at unfavourable 
terms thus compromising its earnings and capital. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to 
generate sufficient cash flow at reasonable cost to meet expected and / or unexpected claims.

   The Company has a view of maintaining liquidity with minimal risks while making investments. The Company 
invests its surplus funds in short term liquid assets in bank deposits and liquid mutual funds. The Company 
monitors its cash and bank balances periodically in view of its short term obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities.

  The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial asset & liabilities;     

  (i) As at March 31, 2023

(` in lakhs)

Particulars upto 6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 
years

more than 
3 years

Total

Financial assets 

(a)  Cash and cash equivalents  6,632.52  -    -    -    6,632.52 

(b)  Term deposits with banks  7,949.50  260.00  183.00  -    8,392.50 

(c)  Trade receivables  4,824.31  -    -    -    4,824.31 

(d)  Investments  177.35  -    -    -    177.35 

(e)  Other financial assets  4,693.96  -    152.76  245.28  5,092.00 

 Total  24,277.64  260.00  335.76  245.28  25,118.68 

Note 46 : Financial risk management (Contd.)
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Note 46 : Financial risk management (Contd.)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars upto 6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 
years

more than 
3 years

Total

 Financial liabilities 

(a)  Trade payables  15,952.96  -    -    -    15,952.96 

(b)  Other payables  268.67  -    -    -    268.67 

(c)  Other financial liabilities  711.13  9.00  78.46  -    798.59 

Total  16,932.76  9.00  78.46  -    17,020.22 

  (ii) As at March 31, 2022

(` in lakhs)

Particulars upto 6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 
years

more than 
3 years

Total

Financial assets 

(a)  Cash and cash equivalents  15,638.46  -    -    -    15,638.46 

(b)  Term deposits with banks  2,600.00  3,041.00  910.50  -    6,551.50 

(c)  Trade receivables  18,659.64  116.82  240.90  75.30  19,092.66 

(d)  Investments  0.01  -    -    -    0.01 

(e)  Other financial assets  5,377.39  45.05  1.50  231.22  5,655.16 

 Total  42,275.50  3,202.87  1,152.90  306.52  46,937.79 

 Financial liabilities 

(a)  Trade payables  36,389.95  -    34.51  -    36,424.46 

(b)  Other payables  687.51  -    -    -    687.51 

(c)  Other financial liabilities  1,033.46  12.79  69.45  -    1,115.71 

Total  38,110.92  12.79  103.96  -    38,227.68 

 (C) Market risk

   Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

  (i) Foreign currency risk

    The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure as at each reporting date. Accordingly, foreign 
currency risk disclosure is not applicable.

  (ii) Interest rate risk

    The Company is exposed to Interest risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes 
in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. 

    The Company’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits with bank and margin trading 
funding to customers. Such instruments exposes the Company to fair value interest rate risk. Management 
believe that the interest rate risk attached to this financial assets are not significant due to the nature of this 
financial assets. Further, the Company has borrowing limit aside with the bank, and interest rate are linked 
to deposits with them. Therefore there is no impact of movement in interest rate on that. All investments 
within the portfolio are approved by the appropriate authority.
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   The following table shows sensitivity analysis for impact of change in interest rate

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Interest rate 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Interest rate 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Increase in 1% in rate of interest  8,392.50  83.93  11,500.74  115.01 

Decrease in 1% in rate of interest  8,392.50  (83.93)  11,500.74  (115.01)

  (iii) Market price risk

    The Company is exposed to market price risk, which arises from FVTPL investment in the quoted shares 
and liquid mutual funds. The management monitors the proportion of mutual funds investments in its 
investment portfolio based on market indices. All investments within the portfolio are approved by the 
appropriate authority.

   The following table shows sensitivity analysis for impact of change in market price

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Interest rate 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Interest rate 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Increase in 5% in market price  177.35  8.87  0.01  0.00 

Decrease in 5% in market price  177.35  (8.87)  0.01  (0.00)

Note 47 : Capital management

Risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to

(a)  safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b) maintain an optimal capital structure to maximise the shareholder value.

The gearing ratio at the reporting date as follows-:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

(a) Debt  -    -   

(b) Cash and bank balances  15,025.02  22,189.96 

(c) Net Debt (a-b)  (15,025.02)  (22,189.96)

(d) Total equity  Capital  608.97  608.97 

(e) Capital gearing ratio (c/d) -2467% -3644%

Note 48 : Other disclosure as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs

(A) Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company

  The Company does not hold or in control of any immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lesse) whose title deeds are not in favour of 
the Company. Other then note number 33

(B) Transactions with specified persons

  The Company has not made any loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs 
and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013). either severally or jointly with any other person 
that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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Note 48 : Other disclosure as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs (Contd.)

(C) Disclosure on Benami Property held

  No any proceedings have been initiated against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act., 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(D) Disclosure on borrowings

 No borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year.

(E) Disclosure on wilful defaulter

 The company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(F) Relationship with Struck off Companies

  The Company has not made any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(G) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

 No any charges created during the year and hence no satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies.

(H) Compliance with number of layers of companies

  The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rule, 2017.

(I) Ratios

  Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xvi) of Division III of Schedule III amendment, disclosure of 
ratios, is not applicable to the Company as it is in broking business and not an NBFC registered under Section 45-IA 
of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(J) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity including foreign entities.

  The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity including foreign entities for the purpose mentioned 
in the said notification.

(K) Undisclosed income

  The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity including foreign entities for the purpose mentioned 
in the said notification.

(L) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

(M) Subsequent events

  There were no significant events after the end of the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in 
the financial statements.

Note 49 : Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has conducted the audit for the financial year 2021-22 and issued the 
Preliminary Objection Memos (POMs). The one of the POMs stated that software maintenance AMC expenses to be 
amortised over the period of the contract which was accounted as expenses due to error. Accordingly, ` 9,23,3401- 
should have been accounted as Prepaid Expense, however, it is accounted as Expense for the financial year 2021-22. This 
has resulted in the overstatement of expenses, understatement of Profit and understatement of other Financial Assets by 
` 9,23,3401/-.

To give effect of above, the Retained Earning has been increased to that extent and accounted as a expenses in the current 
financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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DIN: 08085505

Sarala Menon Hemang Ladani Rajneesh Singh

Place: Mumbai Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: April 28, 2023 DIN: 08499105

Note 50 : Dividend 

a) Following dividend are declared and paid during the current financial year.

Particulars For the 
financial year

Dividend per 
share (`)

No. of  
shares

Total  
Dividend  (`)

Final dividend 

-  at Annual General Meeting held on September 
16, 2022 

2021-22 11  6,089,703  669.87 

Interim dividend 

- at Board Meeting held on January 25, 2023 2022-23 6.5  6,089,703  395.83 

17.5  1,065.70 

(b)  The Board has recommended the final dividend of `1.50 per equity share for the financial year 2022-23 subject to 
approval of the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The total dividend amount would be ` 91.34 lakhs.

Note 51 :

Figures for the corresponding previous Financial period have been regrouped and rearranged to confirm to those of 
current  financial year.
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Independent Directors and MD & CEO along with employees on the occasion of 27th Foundation 
day of the Company. Also present on the occasion (sitting left to right) Shri Bidyut Chowdhury, Chief 
Business Officer, Smt. Pushpa Gawali, Head- HWD, Smt. Sheela Kothavale, AVP, IT, Shri Sanjay Pote, 
MD & CEO, Shri G. Anantharaman, Independent Director, Shri D. C. Jain, Independent Director, Shri 
Rajneesh Singh, Company Secretary, Shri Hemang Ladani, CFO and Shri Vinay Singh, Sr. Manager, 
Stockholding.

Shri Vinay Purohit, Chief Financial Officer, StockHolding, handing over the Winner’s trophy to Ms. 
Nutan Bhoir, Captain, and the women’s team of SSL in the Inter Group Cricket Tournament held at 
Vashi Sports Club, Navi Mumbai. Also gracing the occasion Shri Umesh Punde, Sr. Vice President, 
StockHolding, Shri Jagdish Thakur, Group CFO, StockHolding, Shri R.H. Mewawala, Ex-EVP, (retired) 
StockHolding.
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SSL team along 
with MD & CEO 
(Standing third 
from the left) 
at the Fintech 
India Expo 2023 
held at Pragati 
Maidan, Delhi 
for promotion 
of SSL discount 
broking product 
& Brand 
‘SHAREPA’. 

Shri Sanjay 
Pote, MD & 
CEO sharing his 
insights with 
the participants 
at the Panel 
Discussion in 
Fintech India 
Expo 2023 
held at Pragati 
Maidan, Delhi.

Shri Bidyut Chowdhury, 
Chief Business 

Officer, SHAREPA, 
distributing Souvenirs 

to the visitors at the 
Fintech India Expo, 
2023. Also present, 
Shri Rajiv Somaiya, 
Assistant Manager, 

Ms Yogini Avhad, 
Assistant Manager and 

Ms. Sayali Gaikwad, 
Probationary officer.
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Inauguration 
of Sewage 
treatment plant 
at a hospital run 
for the poor and 
needy. SSL under 
its CSR initiatives 
supports Gurudeva 
Charitable Trust 
at Vizianagaram, 
Andra Pradesh 
which runs the 
hospital.

CSR volunteer 
along with 
student 
participants 
of English 
Speaking Course 
sponsored by 
SSL through 
SHCIL foundation 
Trust for the 
students of Zila 
Parishad School, 
Neral, Karjat, 
Maharashtra.

CSR Nodal officer 
along with the 
participant of 

vocational courses 
run by Sai Trust 
NGO supported 
by SSL through 

SHCIL Foundation 
Trust, for women 

empowerment 
at Neral, Karjat, 

Maharashtra.
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Physics laboratory set-up under the CSR initiatives of SSL at Patamda College, Jharkhand. 

Biology laboratory set-up under the CSR initiatives of SSL at Patamda College, Jharkhand. 






